
KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA 
Wednesday, July 17th, 2024, 7:00pm  

Kensington Community Center, 59 Arlington Avenue, 
Kensington, CA 94707 (in-person and hybrid) 

Date of Notice: 07/12/2024 Page 1 of 3 

How to Submit Public Comments: 
Prior to the meeting: Members of the public may submit public comment to the Board President 
and Board Clerk prior to the meeting by emailing: public.comment@kensingtonfire.org by 2:00pm 
the day of the regular meeting, or by the time posted on the special meeting agenda. Such 
comments will be noted as received and their contents orally summarized; however, if you attend 
the meeting, you will need to make your comment during the meeting. 

During the meeting: Public comment will be taken on each agenda item, and comment on issues 
not on the agenda will be taken at the beginning of the meeting. Directors will also have an 
opportunity to comment on matters not on the agenda. Please address your comments to the 
Board of Directors and not to staff and/or the audience. Members of the public who attend the 
meeting either in-person or via Zoom are allowed to provide public comment verbally with a 
maximum allowance of 3 minutes per individual comment, subject to the Chair’s discretion. Each 
member of the public will be allotted the same maximum number of minutes to speak as set by 
the Chair, except that public speakers using interpretation assistance will be allowed to testify for 
twice the amount of the public testimony time limit (California Government Code section 
54954.3(a)). 

In-person:  At points in the meeting when the meeting chair requests public comment, 
members of the public participating in-person can simply raise their hand to be recognized. 
Via Zoom:  If participating via internet, please click the “raise hand” feature located within 
the Zoom application screen. If connected via telephone, please dial “*9” (star, nine). 

Accommodations:  To enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility to this meeting (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title 1), if you need special assistance 
to participate, please email public.comment@kensingtonfire.org 48 hours prior to the meeting.  

Agenda and supplemental materials:  This agenda is available on the KFPD website under the 
relevant meeting date:  https://www.kensingtonfire.org/governance. Please note that supplemental 
materials will be posted on the website with the agenda as soon as they are available prior to the 
meeting. Additional information or materials may be presented at the meeting itself. 

PLEASE NOTE:  The District will use Zoom to allow virtual access to this meeting. This additional 
means of access is provided as a courtesy to the public and is not required by law. The meeting 
will continue to be conducted at the physical address provided above regardless of any 
interruption or failure of the Zoom transmission. 

Hybrid Meeting Option via Zoom Internet Address: 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83111257473?pwd=0Xoxguk00ylsPsmZtERUUVnBbNrpJ7.1 

Telephone Access: 
(669) 444-9171 or  (253) 205-0468  or  (719) 359-4580

Webinar ID: 831 1125 7473 

Passcode: 112233 

Agenda Packet Page 1 of 156



 
KFPD Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
July 17, 2024 

Page 2 of 3 
 
 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL        
President Levine, Vice President Madugo, Secretary Artis, Director Stein, Director Watt  

 
2. PUBLIC COMMENT 

Under “Public Comment,” the public may address the Board on any subject not listed on the 
agenda. Please address your comments to the Board of Directors and not to staff and/or the 
audience. Each speaker may address the Board once under Public Comment for a limit of 
three minutes. The public will be given an opportunity to speak on each agenda item and once 
the public comment portion of any item on this agenda has been closed by the Board, no 
further comment from the public will be permitted unless authorized by the Board. The Board 
cannot act on items not listed on the agenda and, therefore, cannot respond to non-agenda 
issues brought up under Public Comment other than to provide general information.  
 
Directors will also have an opportunity to comment on matters not on the agenda. 

 
3. ITEMS ADJOURNED FROM THE MEETING ON 6/19/2024 

a. Strategic Planning District Goals- Ad Hoc Committee for Goals (Artis/Watt), (Supporting 
Material) 
The Board’s Ad Hoc Committee for Goals will present revised wording for goals discussed 
at previous Strategic Planning and Board meetings for discussion and direction. 
Action= Review, Discussion, Direction 

b. Renewal of Contract For Emergency Preparedness Coordination - Morris-
Mayorga/Valenzuela (Supporting materials) 
Consultants will review the contract goals and provisions for FY 2024-25 contract renewal. 
Action = Discussion, Direction, Motion 

c. Public Safety Building Repainting - Stein/Watt (Supporting materials) 
The Ad Hoc Committee will report on this item for Board discussion and potential 
consideration of approval 
Action = Discussion, Direction, Motion 

4. ADOPTION OF CONSENT ITEMS 
Items listed below are consent items, which are considered routine by the Board of Directors 
and will be enacted by one motion. The Board of Directors has received and considered 
reports and recommendations prior to assigning consent item designations to the various 
items. Copies of the reports are available to the public. The disposition of the item is indicated. 
There will be no separate discussion of consent items. If discussion is requested for an item, it 
will be removed from the list of consent items and considered separately on the agenda.  

a. Approval of Minutes of the Board of Directors Regular meeting of 05/15/2024 and Special 
meeting of 6/5/2024 (Approve) 

b. Acceptance of Incident Activity Report June 2024 (Accept) 

c. Approval of Monthly Transmittal 07/17/2024 (Approve)  

d. Approval of Monthly Financial Reports 06/30/2024 (Approve) 

e. Ratify Approval of the Change in Time of Regular Emergency Preparedness 
Committee Meetings and Approve Updated Annual Meeting Schedule (Approve) 

5. FIRE CHIEF’S REPORT – Saylors (Supporting Material) 
Action = Presentation/Discussion 

Agenda Packet Page 2 of 156



 
KFPD Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
July 17, 2024 

Page 3 of 3 
 
 

 

6. EMERGENCY PREP COORDINATOR’S REPORT – Valenzuela (Supporting Material) 
Action = Presentation/Discussion 

 
7. OLD BUSINESS  

 
8. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Employment Agreement for General Manager Position (Supporting Material) 
Action = Discuss and consider approval of an Employment Agreement for General 
Manager with associated FY 2024-25 budget adjustments for terms as needed. 

b. Request Marjang modify the first floor of the PSB in accordance with the attached 
layout to provide police service as requested by Ridgeline - Watt (Supporting Material) 
Action = Presentation, discussion, direction for Marjang 

c. Possible capital expenditures of surplus available cash in fiscal year 2024-25 - Watt   
(Supporting Material) 
Action = Discussion, Direction, Motion 

d. Recording and Reporting on Board Meetings - Stein and Artis 

Director Stein requested an item to consider action minutes; Director Artis requested an 
item to consider obtaining transcription software (Supporting Material) 
Action = Discussion, Direction, Motion 

e. CSDA Board of Directors Election Ballot - Term 2025 - 2027; Seat A - Bay Area 
Network - Morris-Mayorga (Supporting Material) 
Action = Discussion, Motion 

9. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT - Morris-Mayorga (Supporting Material) 
Action = Presentation, Discussion, Direction, Motion 
 

10. PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING PROJECT UPDATE – Morris-Mayorga (Supporting Material) 
A brief progress update on the PSB Seismic Renovation for June & July will be presented. 
Action = Presentation, Discussion 
 

11. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
Informational reports from Board members or staff covering the following assignments: 
a. Emergency Preparedness Committee Meeting – Levine/Madugo (Supporting Material) 

Report on the May 23, 2024 meeting 
Action = Presentation, Discussion, Direction 

b. Finance Committee Meeting – Watt/Artis (Supporting Materials)  
Report on June 10th, 2024 meeting 
Action = Presentation, Discussion, Direction  

12. OUTSIDE AGENCIES REPORTS 
a. Contra Costa Special Districts Association – Levine (Supporting Material) 

 
13. ADJOURNMENT 

The next regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Kensington Fire Protection District 
will be held on Wednesday, August 21, 2024 at 7:00pm at the Kensington Community Center. 
The deadline for agenda items to be included in the Board packet is Wednesday, August 7, 
2024, by 1:00pm. The deadline for agenda-related materials to be included in the Board 
Packet is Wednesday, August 14, 2024, by 1:00pm. 

Agenda Packet Page 3 of 156



Consolidated proposed and prior district goals 

There were 42 original goals used as input to this draft, from the current BOD and the Policies 
and procedures manual.  They were grouped into five categories, and synthesized into 15 
goals (some with sub-bullets) 

Draft synthesized goals in each category are in bold at the beginning of each section 

In smaller font in each category: 

- 2024 as-proposed goals are listed in plain font with bolded initials representing
director authorship 

- Italicized goals are related current entries from the Policies and Procedures manual,
separated for clarity 

Agenda Packet Page 4 of 156

Agenda Item 03a



 

 

Vegetation Management and Wildfire Risk mitigation  

Develop a plan for reducing fire risk along the Kensington/EBRPD’s Borders Interface including: 

- Prioritized short-term and 3-year goals, to be developed with EBRPD, with progress 
reviewed at least quarterly 

- A subcommittee to establish and manage partnership with EBRPD and other 
agencies 

- Yearly budgetary allocation to support efforts in coordination with EBRPD 
- Heightened engagement through the Fire Chief with ongoing intra- and inter-agency 

discussions and potential learnings from local fire mitigation successes 
- Regular engagement with existing efforts in the community engaged with fire 

mitigation 

Elevate issue of vegetation management within the town as a priority for Kensington: 

- Support, though public education, the need for vegetation management and home 
hardening and the benefits therefrom 

- Revisit process for supporting replanting and vegetation removal efforts within 
Kensington (e.g. with grants, donations) 

- Support ongoing and developing Firewise efforts within the communitygrowth and 
development of Firewise Communities within Kensington 

 

Develop a comprehensive plan, integrating EBRPD, El Cerrito, Berkeley, and Richmond as needed, which can be used as a basis for grant 
applications and actionable work. DL 

Establish a fund whereby citizens can make tax-deductible donations to promote the district’s planned vegetation management. DL  

Consider the formation of a dedicated subcommittee to establish and manage partnership of fire prevention efforts with EBRP and WCCCSD 
along the ridgeline. RA  

Strengthen the relationship and deepen the engagement between the Kensington Fire Protection District (KFPD) board of directors and the 
KFPD manager with the El Cerrito - Kensington Fire Chief in order to work together on relationships with East Bay Regional Park and other 
fire agencies with fire fuel threats and concerns similar to Kensington. JS  

Work with El Cerrito fire department on possible cost cutting measures and improvements in fire prevention in Tilden Park and reduced fire 
risk on Kensington residential properties. JW  

Establish a fire hazard reduction program with East Bay Regional Park District and budget at least $100,000 annually to reduce fire risk JW  

Establish a “top-three” prioritized list for vegetation management issues to be reviewed at each board meeting (what, when, where, how) – 
propose two of these be ridgeline brush management and communication to upper Kensington property owners with vegetation management 
issues. RA  

 Establish a wildland/urban interface fire prevention effort through an emphasis on public education while establishing 
vegetation management standards and legal enforcement procedures of implementation in subsequent years.  

Maintain a Fire Hazard Reduction Program to work with the East Bay Regional Park District along the Kensington interface. 

 
  

Agenda Packet Page 5 of 156



 

 

Emergency Preparedness 
 

Formalize a joint Emergency Preparedness Committee (EPC) relationship between KPPCSD and 
KFPD (including with the Fire Chief/El Cerrito), to facilitate coordinated planning, synergies of 
staffing and effort and concerted engagement with other agencies (e.g. Contra Costa County) 
(comment received – Seems a bit broad and requires buy-in from lots of groups that aren’t us.) 

Maintain the earthquake and disaster preparedness program by supporting the Community 
Emergency Response Team (CERT). 

Refine and update the role of Emergency Preparedness Coordinator in parallel with evolving the 
mission of the EPC 

 

Move EPC to a committee under both KPPCSD and KFPD with at least one director - and ideally two - from each board 
participating in it. DM  

Approach KPPCSD with a goal of establishing a standing joint evacuation preparedness committee to enhance community 
ability to evacuate in the event of an emergency. RA  

That the district consider each natural hazard it faces proportionally to the risk: fire (including wildfire), earthquake, landslide, 
fire following earthquake, earthquake induced landslides, severe weather, flooding, etc. and do something every month about 
each one. DM  

Identify and pursue appropriate certification and training, along with more robust board of director advisory oversight, for an 
ongoing emergency preparedness coordinator role. JS 

Maintain the earthquake and disaster preparedness program by supporting the Community Emergency Response Team 
(CERT). 
 
Continuously update disaster planning by utilizing support from the City of El Cerrito and their planning process. 

Agenda Packet Page 6 of 156



 

 

Other district operations and policies 
 
Insure District performance, standards and service delivery remain at a high level through: 

- Maintenance of the District of Distinction certification and other administrative 
requirements of the district 

- Review and realignment of staffing and committee structures with strategic goals 
- Facilitating clear communication between staff and the BOD, and the District and the 

citizens of Kensington 
 
Develop and provide resources to effectively support both identification of grant opportunities 
and timely and rapid application to appropriate agencies 
 
Review ongoing issue of insurance non-renewals and scope of mitigating actions available to 
the district 
 
 
 

To enhance the district’s reputation, aggressively pursue and continuously maintain the Kensington Fire Protection District of 
Distinction certificate through timely board member training and satisfaction of all administrative requirements. JS  

To recruit and retain top quality staff, strategically align the Kensington Fire Protection District staffing structure, including 
number of employees and desired expertise, with the District’s strategic goals and objectives. JS  

Identify steps the district can take to promote insurance renewals. DL  

Improving communication between GM and board with district news as it happens - say, update emails. DM  

Improve communication between board members, provide more ways to engage with each other without violating the Brown 
Act. Bulletin board? Jam board? DM  

Keep many goals already established in the policy handbook and specify how they can be accomplished. Communicate those 
goals and plans for their accomplishment to the public/engage the public more. DM  

Revisit Policies and Procedures manual on the topic of volunteer participation on district subcommittees with a goal of 
expanding the use (if possible and prudent). RA  

Establish clear “rapid-response” mechanism for responding to grant opportunities. RA  

Take the necessary steps to obtain government grants for the reduction of fire risks similar to grants awarded nearby 
communities by Con Fire, Measure C and the Dept. of Forestry. JW  

 
Continued implementation of upgraded computer-based systems for records and reports.  

Continuously improve access to and utilization of fire service weather information network.  

Maintain a program to identify and obtain grant funding to support and enhance the District’s fire protection services.  

Prudently manage District funds.  

Agenda Packet Page 7 of 156



 

 

District intergovernmental relations 
 
Invest in a strong working relationship with the KPPCSD: 

- Develop a collaborative Public Safety mindset, and identify actions the districts can 
take in concert to address the needs of Kensington  

- Support the necessary framing for financial and governance analyses related to the 
study of a potential unified district structure 

 
Identify tractable steps available to strengthen ambulance and dispatch service in the district 
 
Support continued district participation in area-wide wildfire response training exercises 
 
Continue to evaluate opportunities to engage in cost-saving or service-enhancing programs 
with agencies in surrounding areas 
 
 
 

Explore strategic synergies with El Cerrito Fire Department and other fire agencies for administrative and emergency 
coordination staffing, including possible inter-agency contracts, demonstration projects, or joint powers agreements. JS  

Support Ridgeline Financial Analysis and engage in good faith in the near term with KPPCSD to provide necessary framing for 
a unified district structure. RA  

Develop and maintain a strong working relationship and active communication with the KPPCSD and hold at least two joint 
meetings/year. Discuss each district’s needs and goals, financing issues, and how each district can support them all of them. 
DM  

Make ambulance service improvements in the district. DL  

Explore strategic alliances with other fire and emergency medical agencies west of the East Bay Hills to strengthen ambulance 
service and integrate dispatch service, including across the West Contra Costa and the Alameda County line. JS  

Maintain enhanced personnel skill levels in wildland firefighting and incident command by continued participation in area-wide 
wildland fire response training exercises. 
 
Provide hazardous materials response training to meet annual mandated requirements and to ensure efficient operations with 
the Richmond Fire Department Hazardous Materials Response Team. 
 
Fully implement the fire protection contract with the City of El Cerrito and respond to other cost-saving and service-enhancing 
opportunities for functional integration of fire services with surrounding jurisdictions. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Packet Page 8 of 156



 

 

Infrastructure Investment 
 
Engage in biannual review of potential infrastructure investments to augment the district’s 
public safety mandate 

- Update current water system improvement plan; identify remaining areas that could 
benefit from upgrading 

- Review hydrant proximity to Hilltop School and Tilden park; identify areas of need 
 
Provide Red-Flag-Day/wildfire evaluation and planning support efforts to engage (with KPPCSD 
and the County) with a focus on 

- Emergency vehicle access routes to the Kensington interface with Tilden Park 
- Traffic control, parking regulation and evacuation protocols 

 
Maintain and report annually to the community on the seismic integrity and functional adequacy 
of Kensington’s fire station 

 

 

Review recent (water) system improvements and determine next steps. DL 

Add additional fire hydrants adjacent to Tilden Park, better emergency vehicle access to the park and cul-de-sac turn around 
at Lake Drive. JW  

Establish a path of travel for emergency access vehicles to reach the Tilden park interface. Budget sufficient money to widen 
streets used for emergency vehicles and Kensington home owner access. JW  

Install an emergency traffic signal at Arlington and Sunset and realign current access route. JW 

Maintain Fire Station No. 55’s functional adequacy and seismic structural integrity.  

Manage and implement capital projects to provide adequate fire flow throughout Kensington.  

 

 
 

Agenda Packet Page 9 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 10 of 156



Agenda Item 03b 

Page 1 of 1 

KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

DATE: July 17, 2024 

TO: Board of Directors 

RE: Renewal of Emergency Preparedness Coordination Contract 

SUBMITTED BY: Mary A. Morris-Mayorga, Consultant 

Recommended Action 

This item is provided for information and collection of feedback on the contract renewal for 
emergency preparedness coordination. 

Background 

The annual contract for emergency preparedness coordination expired June 30, 2024 and a 
proposal for FY 2024-2025 was been received from Altivu.  While the contract funding is 
included in the budget which allows the General Manager to sign a contract for this, the 
proposal was provided to discuss the alignment with District activities.  The Board briefly 
discussed the item on June 19, 2024 and decided to extend the existing agreement pending 
receipt of an updated proposal which incorporated feedback that could be discussed at the next 
meeting. 

With an Emergency Preparedness Work Plan approved, the expectation would be to align this 
and the Emergency Preparedness Coordination goals such that EPC reporting is measurable to 
the Board and community.  This Work Plan would facilitate the Emergency Preparedness 
Coordinator to take a more guiding role in the Emergency Preparedness Committee such as:  
working with subcommittees, exploring potential grant funding, coordination with KPPCSD as 
applicable, and engaging social media (as referenced in the Local Hazard Mitigation Plan 
(LHMP) and with volunteers). 

As a proactive measure, given that the fiscal analysis on consolidation is in progress, we will 
include a contract term which allows re-evaluation of priorities in November/December if 
consolidation may become a serious consideration in the near future. 

Fiscal Impact 

The Fiscal Year 2024-25 Budget contains funds in the amount of $110,935 for the Emergency 
Preparedness Coordinator consulting contract. 

Attachment: Altivu Emergency Preparedness Coordination Proposal for FY 2024-2025 
Altivu Emergency Preparedness Coordinator Consulting Services Agreement 

Agenda Packet Page 11 of 156



KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

Emergency Preparedness Services
2024-25 Contract Proposal

JULY 2024

Agenda Packet Page 12 of 156



INTRODUCTION 

Over the last three years (2021-2024), Kensington residents have enhanced community 
engagement through the Neighborhood Emergency Preparedness Block Party initiative. This 
initiative has provided crucial face-to-face opportunities for residents to discuss safety 
improvements and emergency preparedness directly with the Kensington Fire Protection 
District. Through this increased interaction, Firewise community formation in Kensington 
took root. 
  
A cultural strength of Kensington is the active participation of its residents, which stands out 
even among other wildfire-prone communities. This engagement is crucial in building a 
sustainable fire prevention and emergency preparedness volunteer model. Despite high 
registration rates with the Contra Costa County Community Warning System (estimated 96% 
of residents), challenges remain in reaching a similar audience size via social media platforms, 
where social media engagement measures below 5%. It is particularly important to have 
frequent, fast, and cost-effective communication with the district residents. 
  
Our most effective non-alert communication has been through direct email, where 
approximately 74% of our Red Flag Warning list subscribers actively engage with the content. 
This method has proven essential in providing early warnings of increased wildfire risks or 
other emergency preparedness messages, which are critical as the Community Warning 
System (CWS) only issues alerts in imminently dangerous situations. 

In addition to maintaining high CWS alert registration, we have identified areas for 
improvement in emergency preparedness, particularly in personal evacuation and family 
communication plans and the storage of emergency supplies. Recent surveys conducted at 
our Block Parties and through the Fire Plug newsletter indicate a need for improved personal 
household preparedness. 

By leveraging Kensington’s community-centric culture, we aim to deepen our preparedness 
efforts and build stronger collaborations for improved resilience through Neighborhood 
Emergency Preparedness Block Parties, Firewise community initiatives, and coordination with 

Agenda Packet Page 13 of 156



PROGRAM APPROACH FOR 2024-2025 

To balance the increased demand for community support in Kensington with limited 
personnel and volunteer resources, there is a priority to strategically leverage formation 
of Firewise communities to: 

•  accomplish removal of hazardous vegetation,  
• improve home hardening retrofits and public awareness  
• prepare for wildfire evacuations  

The formation of Firewise communities also provides multiple touch points throughout 
the year with engaged citizens acting as local preparedness ambassadors. This increased 
level of support and engagement with the community fosters a deeper understanding of 
the needs of the community and how to best navigate obstacles and improve resources 
for residents. 

In support of the Kensington Fire Protection District’s mission, the following are the top 
five priorities to improve wildfire prevention, emergency preparedness and community 
resilience: 

• Kensington Firewise Community Development 
• Ember Exclusion Home Hardening 
• Hazardous Vegetation Removal  
• Evacuation Readiness Campaigns 
• Red Flag Warning Email Subscription 

Agenda Packet Page 14 of 156



EP Coordinator Education & Certifications 
  
EDUCATION 
·      BA International Business Management – Russian Language, San Diego State University 
·      International Relations and World Politics - Moscow State University – Russian Federation 
·      Project Management - University of California Los Angeles Extension 
·      Fire Academy – Georgetown / Garden Valley Fire Protection District - El Dorado County, CA 
  

CERTIFICATIONS 
  
Public Information 
·      Advanced Public Information Officer (L0388) – CSTI 
·      Intermediate Public Information Officer – CSTI 
·      Public Information Basics (L0105) - CSTI 
·      Public Information Officer Awareness (IS-29A) -FEMA 
·      Media Relations (MR) - CSTI 
·      Social Media in Emergency Management (IS-42A) -FEMA 
·      Integrated Public Alert and Warning Systems for Alert Originators (IS-247B)- FEMA 
  
Emergency Management 
·      Integrating Access & Functional Needs into Emergency Management (G197) - CSTI 
·      Standardized Emergency Management System Online Course (SEMSG606)-CSTI 
·      Emergency Operations Center Action Planning (G626) – CSTI 
·      Forms Used for The Development of The Incident Action Plan (IS-201) – FEMA 
·      NIMS Intrastate Mutual Aid (IS-706)-FEMA 
·      Recovery From Disasters: The Local Community Role (G205)-CSTI 
·      Emergency Management Concepts (G191/G775) - CSTI 
  
Wildland Firefighting / Structural Firefighting / Incident Command 
·      Introduction to the Incident Command System (ICS-100) - FEMA 
·      Incident Command System for Initial Response (ICS-200) - FEMA 
·      Introduction to the National Incident Management System (ICS-700) - FEMA 
·      Human Factors in The Wildland Fire Service (L-180) - NWCG 
·      All Hazard Safety Officer (L-954) - FEMA 
·      Wildland Firefighter Training (S-130) - NWCG 
·      Introduction to Wildland Fire Behavior (S-190) - NWCG 
·      Wildland Fire Chain Saws (S-212) - NWCG 

FEE STRUCTURE 
Compensation rates have increased, per the US Bureau of Labor Statistics. The June 2021 
Emergency Preparedness Coordinator contract value of $100,000 adjusted for inflation to May 
2024, based on the US Bureau of Labor Statistics, CPI Inflation Calculator, is $116,670.00. 
Monthly billing will not exceed $9,722.50, with the contract beginning retroactively upon the 
previous contract expiration. 

Agenda Packet Page 15 of 156



ALIGNMENT TO KFPD GOALS 

The Kensington Fire Protection District Board established goals for five categories.  

I:  Vegetation Management and Wildfire Risk Mitigation 
II:  Emergency Preparedness 
III: Other District Operations and Policies 
IV:  District Intergovernment Relations 
V:  Infrastructure Investment 

The following pages demonstrate the services and support activies aligned with the 
districts goals and mission.

KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

2024-25 Contract Proposal
 

Agenda Packet Page 16 of 156



District Goal Category I: Vegetation Management and Wildfire Risk Mitigation

Synthesized KFPD  
Goals

Sub Goals Coordinator Support Actions - Currently 
Providing, Proposed, Needs more direction 

Develop a plan for 
reducing fire risk 
along the Kensington/
EBRPD Interface 
including:

Prioritized short-term 
and 3-year goals, to be 
developed with EBRPD, 
with progress reviewed 
at least quarterly.


Support KFPD objectives and mission when more 
detail is provided.

A subcommittee to 
establish and manage 
partnership with EBRPD 
and other agencies.

Provide updates/intel reported by local agencies 
participating in the Hills Emergency Forum 
Monthly Meetings to identify opportunities for 
collaborative partnerships.

Yearly budgetary 
allocation to support 
efforts in coordination 
with EBRPD

Support KFPD objectives and mission when more 
detail is provided.

Heightened 
engagement through 
the Fire Chief with 
ongoing intra-agency 
discussions and 
potential learnings 
from local fire 
mitigation successes

Agency coordination partnership with Berkeley 
Fire in Firewise support and involvement with Hills 
Emergency Forum 

Regular engagement 
with existing efforts 
in the community 
engaged with fire 
mitigation

Community outreach education and 
communication Firewise development and agency 
coordination with Make El Cerrito Fire Safe and 
Kensington Firewise communities that have 
relationships and history of working with EBRPD 
along the Ridgeline.

Elevate issue of 
vegetation 
management within 
the town as a 
priority for 
Kensington:

Support, though 
public education, the 
need for vegetation 
management and 
home hardening and 
the benefits therefrom

Coordination with fire prevention officers for 
ongoing resident support to identify and reduce 
wildfire risk through vegetation management and 
home hardening education and available 
resources ie: Diablo Fire Safe / Kensington 
Firewise /KFPD Vegetation Grants.

District Goal Category I: Vegetation Management and Wildfire Risk Mitigation

Agenda Packet Page 17 of 156



Revisit process for 
supporting replanting 
and vegetation 
removal efforts within 
Kensington (e.g. with 
grants, donations)

Retool the Kensington Replanting Grant to more 
effectively remove hazardous vegetation pending 
additional resources approved by KFPD Board.

Support ongoing and 
developing Firewise 
efforts within the 
community

Educate the public on the benefits of Firewise 
community development, assist application filing 
and provide technical assistance, support firewise 
leads with community outreach and community 
engagement effectiveness, coordinate 
communication and action between residents as a 
liaison when necessary, facilitate firewise lead 
meetings/mixers, attend firewise block parties and 
community education events, interface with 
regional firesafe/firewise associates, attend 
relevant California Fire Safe Council meetings, 
track best practices from statewide firesafe/
firewise communities to be used locally.


District Goal Category I: Vegetation Management and Wildfire Risk MitigationDistrict Goal Category I: Vegetation Management and Wildfire Risk Mitigation

District Goal Category II: Emergency Preparedness

Synthesized KFPD  
Goals

Sub Goals Coordinator Support Actions - Currently 
Providing, Proposed, Needs more direction 

Formalize a joint 
Emergency 
Preparedness 
Committee (EPC) 
relationship between 
KPPCSD and KFPD 
(including with the 
Fire Chief/El Cerrito), 
to facilitate 
coordinated planning, 
synergies of staffing 
and effort and 
concerted engagement 
with other agencies 
(e.g. Contra Costa 
County)

Continue coordination with El Cerrito Kensington 
staff, Berkeley Fire and Contra Costa County Fire 
Protection District County Coordinator to support 
Kensington residents in home hardening and 
removal of hazardous vegetation. 

District Goal Category II: Emergency Preparedness

Agenda Packet Page 18 of 156



Maintain the 
earthquake and 
disaster preparedness 
program by 
supporting the 
Community 
Emergency Response 
Team (CERT).

Assist CERT recruitment and programs by posting 
announcements to the Kensington community 
and integrating CERT announcements and 
encouraging participation during Firewise, 
Neighborhood Block Parties, and other relevant 
community engagements.

Refine and update the 
role of Emergency 
Preparedness 
Coordinator in 
parallel with evolving 
the mission of the 
EPC

Provide data and community feedback to KFPD 
Board, El Cerrito Kensington Fire Chief, and 
Emergency Preparedness Committee to guide 
purposeful and relevant decision making to align 
the Fire District’s and Emergency Preparedness 
Committee’s mission in support of Kensington 
residents. 

District Goal Category II: Emergency PreparednessDistrict Goal Category II: Emergency Preparedness

District Goal Category III: Other District Operations and Policies

Synthesized KFPD  
Goals

Sub Goals Coordinator Support Actions - Currently 
Providing, Proposed, Needs more direction 

Insure District 
performance, 
standards and service 
delivery remain at a 
high level through:

Maintenance of the 
District of Distinction 
certification and other 
administrative 
requirements of the 
district

Continue administrative and public 
communication tasks to support the District of 
Distinction certification.


Review and 
realignment of 
staffing and 
committee structures 
with strategic goals

Support KFPD objectives and mission when more 
detail is provided.

Facilitating clear 
communication 
between staff and the 
BOD, and the District 
and the citizens of 
Kensington

Continue providing Public Information services to 
the Kensington community and reporting relevant 
and timely updates to the General Manager, Fire 
Chief, and Board of Directors.

District Goal Category III: Other District Operations and Policies

Agenda Packet Page 19 of 156



Develop and provide 
resources to 
effectively support 
both identification of 
grant opportunities 
and timely and rapid 
application to 
appropriate agencies

Through firewise development, emergency 
preparedness initiatives, data collection, and 
public awareness campaigns and educational 
events, position the community to be competitive 
to receive relevant grants. Continue to forward 
any grant notifications discovered to the KFPD 
General Manager for review and consideration.

Review ongoing issue 
of insurance non-
renewals and scope of 
mitigating actions 
available to the 
district

Increase presence of California Department of 
Insurance resources and messaging with the 
community and integrate with Firewise 
development, home hardening, and hazardous 
vegetation initiatives.

District Goal Category III: Other District Operations and PoliciesDistrict Goal Category III: Other District Operations and Policies

District Goal Category IV: District Intergovernmental Relations

Synthesized KFPD  
Goals

Sub Goals Coordinator Support Actions - Currently 
Providing, Proposed, Needs more direction 

Invest in a strong 
working relationship 
with the KPPCSD:

Develop a 
collaborative Public 
Safety mindset, and 
identify actions the 
districts can take in 
concert to address the 
needs of Kensington

Continue working with KPPCSD/KPD on public 
events such as National Night Out, and public 
awareness campaigns, Neighborhood Emergency 
Preparedness Block Party events.

Support the necessary 
framing for financial 
and governance 
analyses related to the 
study of a potential 
unified district 
structure

Support KFPD objectives and mission when more 
detail is provided.

Identify tractable 
steps available to 
strengthen ambulance 
and dispatch service 
in the district

Support KFPD objectives and mission when more 
detail is provided.

District Goal Category IV: District Intergovernmental Relations

Agenda Packet Page 20 of 156



Support continued 
district participation 
in area-wide wildfire 
response training 
exercises

Inform the public of area-wide wildfire response 
training exercises and use the opportunity to 
remind the public to take steps at home to 
prepare for wildfire risks evacuation readiness.

Continue to evaluate 
opportunities to 
engage in cost-saving 
or service-enhancing 
programs with 
agencies in 
surrounding areas

Continue working with Contra Costa County Fire 
Protection District County Coordinator and 
escalate inquiries to  identify opportunities for 
residents to qualify for Measure X Wildfire 
Mitigation programs or other resources regionally 
available. 

District Goal Category IV: District Intergovernmental RelationsDistrict Goal Category IV: District Intergovernmental Relations

District Goal Category V: Infrastructure Investment

Synthesized KFPD  
Goals

Sub Goals Coordinator Support Actions - Currently 
Providing, Proposed, Needs more direction 

Engage in biannual 
review of potential 
infrastructure 
investments to 
augment the district’s 
public safety mandate

Update current water 
system improvement 
plan; identify 
remaining areas that 
could benefit from 
upgrading

Support KFPD objectives and mission when more 
detail is provided.

Review hydrant 
proximity to Hilltop 
School and Tilden park; 
identify areas of need

Support KFPD objectives and mission when more 
detail is provided.

Provide Red-Flag-
Day/wildfire 
evaluation and 
planning support 
efforts to engage 
(with KPPCSD and 
the County) with a 
focus on

Emergency vehicle 
access routes to the 
Kensington interface 
with Tilden Park

Assist with public awareness campaign 
development and relevant messaging to the 
community.

Traffic control, 
parking regulation 
and evacuation 
protocols

Assist with public awareness campaign 
development and relevant messaging to the 
community.

District Goal Category V: Infrastructure Investment

Agenda Packet Page 21 of 156



Maintain and report 
annually to the 
community on the 
seismic integrity and 
functional adequacy 
of Kensington’s fire 
station

Assist with public awareness campaign 
development and relevant messaging to the 
community.

District Goal Category V: Infrastructure InvestmentDistrict Goal Category V: Infrastructure Investment

Agenda Packet Page 22 of 156



ONGOING SERVICES - Community Preparedness 
Campaigns and Programs, Communication and 
Education 

The following pages demonstrate the currently provided services aligned to the KFPD 
categorized goals: 

I:  Vegetation Management and Wildfire Risk Mitigation 
II:  Emergency Preparedness 
III: Other District Operations and Policies 
IV:  District Intergovernment Relations 
V:  Infrastructure Investment 

KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

2024-25 Contract Proposal
 

Agenda Packet Page 23 of 156



COMMUNITY PREPAREDNESS CAMPAIGNS & PROGRAMS

PROGRAM/
CAMPAIGN

KFPD STRATEGIC 
ALIGNMENT

Description of Coordinator activities and 
support.

Home Hardening 
Program and Public 
Awareness Campaign

CATEGORY I: 
Vegetation 
Management and 
Wildfire Risk Mitigation

Prioritize communication on ember exclusion to 
prevent home ignition from wildfire or structure to 
structure fire.

Red Flag Warning 
Email Program and 
Public Awareness 
Campaign

CATEGORY II: 
Emergency 
Preparedness

Continue subscriptions for Red Flag Warning 
Email Distribution List and update the district Red 
Flag Web Page as needed. Push  Red Flag 
notifications to community through  email and 
social media. Develop physical Red Flag Warning 
announcements in visible areas of the community 
when activated by National Weather Service

Hazardous Vegetation 
Removal Program

CATEGORY I: 
Vegetation 
Management and 
Wildfire Risk Mitigation

Continue reinforcing the necessity to remove  
hazardous vegetation ( juniper, bamboo, 
eucalyptus) priority removal along routes out of 
homes and main corridors for evacuation. Finalize 
developing a program to support removal of 
hazardous plants pending allocation of funds with 
KFPD Board approval.

Evacuation Readiness 
Campaign

CATEGORY II: 
Emergency 
Preparedness

Continue promoting evacuation readiness 
prioritizing a) knowing multiple routes out from 
home b) establishing a place to stay outside of 
Kensington in advance of an incident and c) 
working with neighbors to improve community 
preparedness to reduce hazards (i.e. parking 
changes and vegetation removal)

Neighborhood 
Emergency 
Preparedness Block 
Party Program 

CATEGORY II: 
Emergency 
Preparedness

Continue being available to provide presentations 
at a local level to advance the district’s mission to 
support firewise development, CERT recruitment, 
hazardous vegetation removal, evacuation 
readiness, emergency preparedness, and 
community resilience.


Kensington Firewise 
Program

CATEGORY I: 
Vegetation 
Management and 
Wildfire Risk Mitigation 


CATEGORY II: 
Emergency 
Preparedness 


CATEGORY IV: District 
intergovernmental 
relations.

Continue promoting firewise development in 
Kensington, supporting application filings, assist 
community outreach and participation, liaise with 
Berkley Firewise  and Make El Cerrito Fire Safe  
associates for collaborative  engagement.

COMMUNITY PREPAREDNESS CAMPAIGNS & PROGRAMS

Agenda Packet Page 24 of 156



CERT Recruitment/
Courses/ Events 
Public Awareness

CATEGORY II: 
Emergency 
Preparedness

Continue supporting CERT recruitment, training, 
and events by publishing announcements and 
encouraging participation.

COMMUNITY PREPAREDNESS CAMPAIGNS & PROGRAMSCOMMUNITY PREPAREDNESS CAMPAIGNS & PROGRAMS

EDUCATION & COMMUNICATION

Service/Deliverable KFPD STRATEGIC 
ALIGNMENT

Description of Coordinator activities and 
support.

Public Information 
Continuity

CATEGORY III: Other 
district operations and 
policies

Provide timely, relevant, information to the 
community through digital, print, and public 
engagements.

Monitor 
communication

CATEGORY III: Other 
district operations and 
policies

Route and respond to inbound inquires 
appropriately.

Track hazards CATEGORY II: 
Emergency 
Preparedness

Monitor NWS announcements for relevant hazards 
to the community.

Website updates CATEGORY III: Other 
district operations and 
policies

Create and update existing pages of the KFPD 
website.

Maintain Red Flag 
Warning Email 
Distribution List

CATEGORY II: 
Emergency 
Preparedness

Add contacts to the Red Flag Warning Email 
distribution list.


Assist residents with 
CWS Registration 

CATEGORY II: 
Emergency 
Preparedness

Provide contact information to CWS for residents 
to confirm registration or create a new profile for 
warning notifications.

Firewise Overview CATEGORY I: 
Vegetation 
Management and 
Wildfire Risk Mitigation

Provide program overview information to residents 
interested in developing a firewise community. 
Introduce prospective leads to active firewise 
leads within Kensington. 

Kensington Outlook 
Articles

CATEGORY III: Other 
district operations and 
policies

Provide relevant content for publication through 
the Kensington Outlook that aligns with the 
district’s mission.

EDUCATION & COMMUNICATION

Agenda Packet Page 25 of 156



Fire Plug Publication CATEGORY III: Other 
district operations and 
policies

Publish the KFPD newsletter twice annually.

Ad Hoc 
Communications

CATEGORY IV: 

District 
Intergovernmental  
Relations


CATEGORY V: 
Infrastructure 
Investment

Create outreach material for firewise communities, 
or notices for the El Cerrito Kensington Fire 
Department when needed.

Existing Activities CATEGORY I: 
Vegetation 
Management and 
Wildfire Risk Mitigation 


CATEGORY II: 
Emergency 
Preparedness 


CATEGORY IV: District 
intergovernmental 
relations.

National Night Out

CERT Announcements


National Preparedness Month

Sandbag Distribution

Fire Extinguisher Disposal


CERT Water Storage Sale

Paper Shredding & Medical Collection Event

Evacuation Readiness Campaign

Community Wildfire Preparedness Day/Week	 


Kensington Firewise	 


EDUCATION & COMMUNICATIONEDUCATION & COMMUNICATION

Agenda Packet Page 26 of 156



Emergency Preparedness Coordinator Campaign 
Timeline 

The following page illustrates the timline of campaigns and activity throughout the year. 

KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

2024-25 Contract Proposal
 

Agenda Packet Page 27 of 156



JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE
2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 6 13 20 27   3 10 17 24 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 4 11 18 25 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 4 11 18 25

PUBLICATIONS
Kensington Outlook
Fire Plug

CAMPAIGNS/ EVENTS
Shredding Event
National Night Out
CERT
National Preparedness Month
Evacuation Readiness
Sandbag Distribution
Hazardous Vegetation
Home Hardening
Community Wildfire Prep Day
Meetings
KFPD
KFPD EPC
HEF
Ongoing Initiatives
Red Flag Email
Firewise Support
Administrative/Operational
Block Party 

Agenda Packet Page 28 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 29 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 30 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 31 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 32 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 33 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 34 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 35 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 36 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 37 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 38 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 39 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 40 of 156



APRIL 2022 KENSINGTON EVACUATION DRILL 
OPERATIONAL REPORT AND SURVEY RESULTS

BY: JOHNNY VALENZUELA 
Emergency Preparedness Coordinator 
Kensington Fire Protection District

PREPAREDNESS PUBLICATIONS: 
Scan the QR’s below to view the full document.

Agenda Packet Page 41 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 42 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 43 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 44 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 45 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 46 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 47 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 48 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 49 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 50 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 51 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 52 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 53 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 54 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 55 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 56 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 57 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 58 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 59 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 60 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 61 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 62 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 63 of 156



REPAINTING THE PSB 

Item 9e on the June KFPD agenda was to discuss the possible repainting of the 
PSB. The meeting ended before a discussion took place. This is to provide some 
background and clarity to the purpose of a repainting. 

Julie and I were appointed as an ad hoc committee to look at this, and I obtained a 
bid from a local painter. GM Tim Barry requested a color scheme from our project 
architect and several of those options were included in the June agenda with no 
estimate of cost or the primary purpose of repainting. 

Several months ago, the neighbors of the house north of the PSB contacted us to 
express several concerns. First, when the PSB was remodeled the 400 sq.Jt. of 
outside sitting area was enclosed which eliminated sunlight to the neighbor's house. 
Second, the PSB was repainted in a very dark color which further reduced light to 
their house. As stated in the attached letter from this neighbor, they are requesting 
that the PSB be repainted a lighter color. 

We obtained a color scheme and a bid from Gate View Painting, a local painter who 
has painted other El Cerrito fire stations. This proposal is to paint the two sides and 
front, but not the back. This repainting will require a primer bonding coat and two 
finish coats. It will require scaffolds and take one week to complete. The labor and 
material costs are $16,440. 

When this was presented two months ago our GM, Tim Barry, requested getting a 
color scheme from our architect, Marjang. Marjang came back with several color 
concepts, copies attached, but no price. These colors consist of a white and a soft 
green, but will not blend that well with the bright red fire truck doors which cannot be 
repainted, only replaced. 

It is therefore recommended that we either accept the bid from Gate View Painting 
for three sides, or ask him for a bid for just the side facing the adjacent house to the 
north. The start date would occur when the fire department occupied the PSB and 
painting would not interfere with operations. 

Jim watt 

. "

Agenda Item 03c

Agenda Packet Page 64 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 65 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 66 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 67 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 68 of 156



  Agenda Item 04a 
 

KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 
 
 
 
 
DATE/TIME: May 15, 2024, 7:00PM 

 
LOCATION: Kensington Community Center, 59 Arlington Avenue, Kensington (and hybrid) 

 
PRESENT: Directors: President Daniel Levine, Vice President Danielle Madugo, 

Director Rick Artis, Director Julie Stein, Director Jim Watt 
Staff: Interim GM Tim Barry, Executive Assistant/Board Clerk 

Candace Eros Diaz, Fire Chief Eric Saylors 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

President Daniel Levine called the meeting to order at 7:06 p.m. and confirmed the roll call. 

 
2. PUBLIC COMMENT (00:00:52) 

 
Mary Korn, an attendee on zoom, commented on the subject of the Contra Costa Local Hazard 
Mitigation Plan, Assembly Bill 3074.  There was no additional public comment. 

 
3. ADOPTION OF CONSENT ITEMS (00:06:26) 

 
Interim GM Tim Barry removed agenda item 03b as it was approved at the April 17, 2024 meeting. 

 
a. Approval of Minutes of the Board of Directors Regular meetings of 02/21/2024, 

03/20/2024, 04/17/2024 (Approve) 

b. Acceptance of Incident Activity Report April 2024 

c. Approval of Monthly Transmittal 04/15/2024 

d. Approval of Monthly Financial Reports 04/30/2024 
 

Moved/Seconded: Vice President Madugo/Director Stein 
Action: Approved Consent Items 3a and 3c-d Ayes: President Levine, Vice President Madugo, 
Director Stein, Director Watt Noes: None Abstain: Director Artis Absent: None 
 Video Time Stamped: 00:07:42 

 
4. PRESENTATION BY EAST BAY REGIONAL PARK DISTRICT (00:07:50) 

Chief Aileen Theile, Assistant Chief Khari Halae, and Captain Patrick McIntyre, from the 
East Bay Regional Park District, presented the report as included in the packet. The board 
discussed the item. 
 
Tom Cunnif commented on addressing areas of concern before September.  Ciara Wood 
commented on her concerns of storm damage’s effect on the landscape.  Anthony Knight 
suggested moving towards a solution either by having more frequent meetings or joint 
committees.  There was no additional public comment. 

Agenda Packet Page 69 of 156



Board of Directors Regular Meeting Minutes of May 15, 2024 

Page 2 of 4 

 

 

 
5. FIRE CHIEF’S REPORT (01:32:44) 

Fire Chief Eric Saylors presented the report as included in the packet. He provided 
administrative practices, operations, public outreach, and training updates. The board 
discussed the item. 
 
Anthony Knight commented on the subject of the ability to pass ordinances limiting vegetation 
within 100 ft of our border.  Tom Cunnif commented on the subject of ordinances to limit 
vegetation on residential properties that are already enforceable now. There was no additional 
public comment. 

 
6. CONTRA COSTA COUNTY LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN (LHMP) (01:41:22) 

Captain David Ciappara presented the report as included in the packet. The board 
discussed the item. 
 
There was no public comment. 

7. EAST BAY HILLS WILDFIRE PREVENTION MOU AND COORDINATING GROUP 
(02:00:45) 

Fire Chief Eric Saylors presented the report and resolution as included in the packet. The board 
discussed the item and determined to take no action at this time. 
 
There was no public comment. 

 
8. EMERGENCY PREP COORDINATOR’S REPORT (02:22:26) 

EP Coordinator Johnny Valenzuela presented the report including presentation. He 
highlighted community engagement events, district communications/publications, 
initiatives/deliverables, and past meetings. 
 
There was no board discussion or public comment. 

 
9. OLD BUSINESS 

 
There was no old business. 
 

10. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. PROPOSAL TO CHANGE START TIME OF REGULAR EMERGENCY 
PREPAREDNESS COMMITTEE (EPC) MEETINGS TO 4:00 P.M. (02:28:33) 

 
President Levine introduced, and the board discussed the item. 
 
There was no public comment. 

 
Moved/Seconded: Director Stein/Note:  No second was received (this item will be ratified at a 
future agenda) 
Action: Approved changing the start time of regular Emergency Preparedness Committee 
meetings from 3:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m. Ayes:  Director Artis, President Levine, Vice President 
Madugo, Director Stein, Director Watt Noes: None Abstain: None Absent: None 
  Video Time Stamped: 02:29:30 
 

Agenda Packet Page 70 of 156



Board of Directors Regular Meeting Minutes of May 15, 2024 

Page 3 of 4 

 

 

 
b. EXTERIOR COLOR OF PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING (02:29:40) 
 

Director Watt presented the report as included in the packet. The board discussed the 
item and agreed to have Interim GM Barry engage the architect and a color consultant 
on the matter. 
 
A member of the public commented on the subject of the exterior color of the public safety 
building. 
 
President Levine appointed Directors Watt and Stein to an ad-hoc committee for this. 
 
There was no additional public comment. 
 

Moved/Seconded: President Levine/Director Artis 
Action: Approved extending the meeting to 10:15 p.m. Ayes:  Director Artis, President 
Levine, Vice President Madugo, Director Stein, Director Watt Noes: None Abstain: None 
Absent: None Video Time Stamped: 02:47:00 

 
11. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (02:47:12) 
 

Interim GM Barry presented the report as included in the packet. The board discussed the 
item. 
 
There was no additional public comment. 
 

Moved/Seconded: President Levine/Vice President Madugo 
Action: Approved the Interim GM to schedule a special joint meeting with the KPPCSD on the 
topic of determining the details of a potential consolidated district in early June 2024. Ayes: 
Director Artis, President Levine, Vice President Madugo Noes: Director Watt Abstain: Director 
Stein Absent: None Video Time Stamped: 02:52:15 
 

Moved/Seconded: President Levine/Director Artis 
Action: Approved extending the meeting to 10:30 p.m. Ayes:  Director Artis, President Levine, 
Vice President Madugo, Director Stein, Director Watt Noes: None Abstain: None Absent: None  
  Video Time Stamped: 03:05:29 
 

Moved/Seconded: President Levine/Director Artis 
Action: Approved the Interim GM to expand the existing contract scope of Mary Morris-Mayorga 
to perform and be in charge of all tasks necessary for continuity of the District until a new Interim 
General Manager is appointed. Ayes: Director Artis, President Levine, Vice President Madugo, 
Director Stein, Director Watt Noes: None Abstain: None Absent: None 
  Video Time Stamped: 03:10:28 

 
12. PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING PROJECT UPDATE (03:19:18) 
 

Interim GM Barry presented the report as included in the packet noting the furniture is in the 
process of being ordered as items in storage are not usable. The board discussed the item. 
 
A member of the public commented on the subject of furnishing the public safety building and if 
there will be an announcement to the community on the matter. 
 
There was no additional public comment. 

Agenda Packet Page 71 of 156



Board of Directors Regular Meeting Minutes of May 15, 2024 

Page 4 of 4 

 

 

 
13. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 
a. Emergency Preparedness Committee Meeting (03:23:42) 
 

President Levine presented the report as included in the packet. The board 
discussed the item. 
 
There was no public comment. 
 

b. Finance Committee Meeting 
 

There was no report. 
 

14. OUTSIDE AGENCIES REPORTS 
 

a. Contra Costa Special Districts Association 
 

There was no report. 
 

15. ADJOURNMENT: President Levine adjourned the meeting at 10:30 p.m. 
 

 
MINUTES PREPARED BY: Candace Eros Diaz and Rina Ly 

These minutes were approved at the Board Meeting of the Kensington Fire Protection District 
on June 19, 2024. 

 
Attest: 
 
 

 

Secretary of the Board 

Agenda Packet Page 72 of 156



  Agenda Item 04a 

 
KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

SPECIAL JOINT MEETING MINUTES OF 
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND 

THE KENSINGTON POLICE PROTECTION AND COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  
 
 
 
 
 

DATE/TIME: June 5, 2024, 6:30PM 
 
LOCATION: Kensington Community Center, 59 Arlington Avenue, Kensington (and hybrid) 

 
PRESENT: KFPD Directors: President Daniel Levine, Vice President Danielle Madugo, 

Director Rick Artis, Director Julie Stein, Director Jim Watt 
 

Staff: Interim GM Tim Barry, Consultant Mary Morris-Mayorga, 
Executive Assistant/Board Clerk Rina Ly 

 
KPPCSD Directors: President David Spath, Vice President Alexandra Aquino-Fike, 

Director Cassandra Duggan, Director Sylvia Hacaj 
 

Staff: Interim GM David Aranda, Clerk of the Board Lynelle M. Lewis 
 

ABSENT:  KPPCSD Directors: Director Sarah Gough 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
President Daniel Levine called the meeting to order at 6:37 p.m. and confirmed the roll call. 

 
2. PUBLIC COMMENT (00:18:07) 

 
There was no public comment. 

 
3. DISCUSSION ONLY – Administrative Structure in a Hypothetical Combined District (00:19:26) 

 
KFPD President Levine provided an overview of the meeting’s purpose.  Next, KFPD 
Consultant Mary Morris-Mayorga presented background on the development of the Draft 
KFPD & KPPCSD Administrative Structure in a Hypothetical Combined District.  She reviewed 
the current and hypothetical organization charts and functions for both agencies.  She noted 
that this information is needed for Ridgeline Municipal Strategies to consider in its fiscal 
analysis.  KPPCSD Interim General Manager David Aranda pointed out that this information 
was put together based on their respective experiences. 
 
Board members asked questions about the proposed staff, roles and reporting responsibilities, 
budget impacts, costs for CalPERS, technical support, and the need for redundancy and 
resilience. 
 
Public comment was received from the following persons: 1) Rob Firmin, representing the 
Kensington Property Owners Association, presented a perspective on the staffing challenges for 
the combined districts; 2) Gail Feldman commented that she would like to see an “apples to 
apples” comparison on the benefits of the staffing proposal for a combined district and have the 

Agenda Packet Page 73 of 156



Board of Directors Special Meeting Minutes of June 5, 2024 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

fiscal analysis look at salary and benefits; 3) Paul Dorroh asked about the talent pool for 
recruitment of a full-time General Manager and thanked the boards for this effort; 4) David Fike 
commented that staff is best able to be efficient when they have clear priorities that consolidation 
can bring about; 5) Dmitry Semenov, Ridgeline Municipal Strategies, thanked the boards and staff 
in putting the effort into what the combined district would look like in the future; and 6) Linda 
Lipscomb commented on the philosophy and benefits of a consolidated district to the Kensington 
community. 
 
KFPD Director Artis commented that the fiscal analysis should leverage the community volunteer 
effort to provide resilience to the combined district.  KFPD President Levine commented on his 
support of forwarding the proposed structure to Ridgeline Municipal Strategies.  KPPCSD Director 
Duggan commented that she agrees with the new proposed structure.  KFPD Director Stein 
pointed out that KPPCSD general managers are subject to CalPERS hours limitations while 
KFPD is not part of CalPERS; this should be considered as part of the Ridgeline costing analysis.  
KPPCSD Director Aquino-Fike thanked everyone for this conversation which brings optimism 
about creating a more resilient Kensington with a combined District.  KPPCSD Spath thanked 
staff for putting this meeting together and for the boards coming together.  He supported providing 
the proposed structure to Ridgeline for fiscal analysis. 
 

4. ADJOURNMENT: President Levine adjourned the meeting at 8:29 p.m. 
 

 
MINUTES PREPARED BY: Mary Morris-Mayorga and Lynelle Lewis (KPPCSD) 

These minutes were approved at the Board Meeting of the Kensington Fire Protection District 
on July 17, 2024. 

 
Attest: 
 
 

 

Secretary of the Board 

Agenda Packet Page 74 of 156



EL CERRITO-KENSINGTON FIRE DEPARTMENT 
10900 San Pablo Avenue  El Cerrito  CA  94530 

(510) 215-4450  FAX (510) 232-4917  
www.el-cerrito.org 

DATE:  July 2, 2024 

TO:  Kensington Fire Protection District Board Members 

FROM:  Jose Castrejon: Battalion Chief 

RE:  Incident Activity Reports for June 2024 

Forty incidents occurred in the Kensington community in June, an increase of thirteen incidents from the 
previous month. Please see the attached “Incident Log” for the dates and times, locations, and types of 
incidents the Fire Department responded to this past month. During this same time, Engine 55 responded 
to Seventy-one calls for service, an increase of 20 incidents from the previous month. Overall, the El 
Cerrito-Kensington Fire Department has responded to 1,764 calls for service for the year. 

The chart below shows the seven incident response types tracked by the State and National fire incident 
reporting systems. It also includes the number of responses for each type, the percentage of the total calls 
for each type, and all the responses in the Kensington community. 

Call Type  
Incident 

Count Percentages 
1: Fires (Structure, Trash, Vehicles, Vegetation Fires) 0 0.00% 

2: Explosions / Ruptures (Over Pressure/Ruptures, Explosions, Bombs 0 0.00% 
3: Medical  (EMS, Vehicle Accidents, Extrication Rescue) 22 55.00% 
4: Hazardous Condition (Chemical Spills, Leaks, Down Power Lines) 3 7.50% 
5: Service Calls (Distress, Water/Smoke/Odor Problems, Public Assists) 5 12.50% 

6: Good Intent Calls (Distress, Water/Smoke/Odor Problems, Public Assists) 6 15.00% 
7: False Calls (Wrong Company/Unit Dispatched) 4 10.00% 
8: Weather (flooding, wind, lightning) 0 0.00% 

Totals 40 100.00% 

Agenda Packet Page 75 of 156

Agenda Item 04b



E55 Responses 
June 2024

# Incident Date Type Street Type City Apparatus
1 0024065461 01-Jun-24 09:19:44 611 Carlson BLVD El Cerrito E155
2 0024065521 01-Jun-24 12:17:14 321 Balra DR El Cerrito E155
3 0024066120 02-Jun-24 18:54:28 321 Los Altos DR Kensington E155
4 0024066239 02-Jun-24 23:08:07 710 San Pablo AVE El Cerrito E155
5 0024066638 03-Jun-24 19:26:12 611M Moeser LN El Cerrito E155
6 0024066918 04-Jun-24 10:46:45 444 Harper ST El Cerrito E155
7 0024066966 04-Jun-24 12:12:53 321 Los Altos DR Kensington E155
8 0024067019 04-Jun-24 13:03:56 321 Arlington BLVD El Cerrito E155
9 0024067353 05-Jun-24 04:55:34 321 Coventry RD Kensington E155

10 0024067568 05-Jun-24 13:02:14 611M E Wildcat Canyon RD Orinda E155
11 0024067636 05-Jun-24 14:55:44 323 Arlington BLVD El Cerrito E155
12 0024068123 06-Jun-24 12:32:26 611 Highgate RD Kensington E155
13 0024068203 06-Jun-24 14:53:25 444 Elm ST El Cerrito E155
14 0024068445 07-Jun-24 04:02:28 611 Florida AVE Richmond E155
15 0024068767 07-Jun-24 18:20:19 733 Franciscan WAY Kensington E155
16 0024068798 07-Jun-24 19:28:14 733 Franciscan WAY Kensington E155
17 0024068940 08-Jun-24 03:12:41 733 Everett ST El Cerrito E155
18 0024068990 08-Jun-24 08:02:40 554 Everett ST El Cerrito E155
19 0024069277 08-Jun-24 20:13:28 San Pablo AVE San Pablo E155
20 0024069330 08-Jun-24 22:57:08 322 Arlington AVE Kensington E155
21 0024069731 09-Jun-24 19:03:35 321 Coventry RD Kensington E155
22 0024069768 09-Jun-24 21:11:10 321 Terrace DR El Cerrito E155
23 0024069845 10-Jun-24 04:18:12 321 Rincon RD Kensington E155
24 0024069952 10-Jun-24 10:24:24 553 Julian CT El Cerrito E155
25 0024069992 10-Jun-24 11:28:32 611X Don Carol DR El Cerrito E155
26 0024070158 10-Jun-24 17:23:06 5000 Village DR El Cerrito E155
27 0024070269 10-Jun-24 20:42:27 553 Shevlin DR El Cerrito E155
28 0024070323 11-Jun-24 00:08:40 321 Willamette AVE Kensington E155
29 0024070543 11-Jun-24 12:53:47 611M Cutting BLVD El Cerrito E155

Agenda Packet Page 76 of 156



E55 Responses 
June 2024

30 0024070639 11-Jun-24 15:56:16 321 Colusa AVE El Cerrito E155
31 0024070712 11-Jun-24 18:49:49 321 Westminster AVE Kensington E155
32 0024071273 12-Jun-24 23:28:52 611X Arlington BLVD El Cerrito E155
33 0024071417 13-Jun-24 10:28:38 444 Columbia AVE Kensington E155
34 0024072242 15-Jun-24 03:45:03 321 Seaview DR El Cerrito E155
35 0024072649 16-Jun-24 04:05:20 321 Highgate RD Kensington E155
36 0024072875 16-Jun-24 15:00:10 522 Arlington AVE Kensington E155
37 0024072907 16-Jun-24 16:23:00 321 Madera CIR El Cerrito E155
38 0024072909 16-Jun-24 16:30:25 511 Arlington BLVD El Cerrito E155
39 0024073217 17-Jun-24 10:39:26 412 Windsor AVE Kensington E155
40 0024073245 17-Jun-24 11:31:08 321 Vassar AVE Kensington E155
41 0024073277 17-Jun-24 13:08:00 321 Don Carol DR El Cerrito E155
42 0024073480 17-Jun-24 22:07:30 554 Don Carol DR El Cerrito E155
43 0024073859 18-Jun-24 20:24:22 321 Arlington AVE Kensington E155
44 0024073901 18-Jun-24 21:47:16 321 King DR El Cerrito E155
45 0024074156 19-Jun-24 13:58:30 321 Highgate CT Kensington E155
46 0024074207 19-Jun-24 16:24:36 745 Canon DR Kensington E155
47 0024074292 19-Jun-24 19:06:52 321 Leneve PL El Cerrito E155
48 0024074353 19-Jun-24 22:01:37 321 Craft AVE El Cerrito E155
49 0024074547 20-Jun-24 12:17:40 321 El Cerrito PLZ El Cerrito E155
50 0024074618 20-Jun-24 14:58:55 321 Willamette AVE Kensington E155
51 0024074668 20-Jun-24 16:32:14 651 Ocean View AVE Kensington E155
52 0024074768 20-Jun-24 20:57:01 911 Contra Costa DR El Cerrito E155
53 0024075326 22-Jun-24 05:39:57 321 York AVE Kensington E155
54 0024075583 22-Jun-24 16:25:29 321 Arlington AVE Kensington E155
55 0024075866 23-Jun-24 07:10:47 653 Windsor AVE Kensington E155
56 0024076221 24-Jun-24 02:19:54 400 Kenyon AVE Kensington E155
57 0024076598 24-Jun-24 19:42:13 554 York AVE Kensington E155
58 0024076907 25-Jun-24 13:06:52 611 San Pablo AVE San Pablo E155
59 0024076911 25-Jun-24 13:13:32 321 Kerr AVE Kensington E155

Agenda Packet Page 77 of 156



E55 Responses 
June 2024

60 0024076911 25-Jun-24 13:13:32 321 Kerr AVE Kensington E155
61 0024077110 25-Jun-24 21:12:22 321 Moeser LN El Cerrito E155
62 0024077134 25-Jun-24 22:34:05 321 Highland BLVD Kensington E155
63 0024077818 27-Jun-24 10:38:07 5000 Madera CIR El Cerrito E155
64 0024077904 27-Jun-24 14:25:34 730 El Cerrito PLZ El Cerrito E155
65 0024078604 28-Jun-24 23:37:38 746 Sunset TER Kensington E155
66 0024078738 29-Jun-24 09:07:47 520 Sunset DR Kensington E155
67 0024079177 30-Jun-24 05:56:27 611M Edgehill CT El Cerrito E155
68 0024079264 30-Jun-24 10:34:59 311 Stockton AVE El Cerrito E155
69 0024079483 30-Jun-24 19:00:23 322 Purdue AVE Kensington E155
70 0024079616 01-Jul-24 01:48:54 San Pablo AVE El Cerrito E155
71 0024079630 01-Jul-24 03:43:56 321 Kerr AVE Kensington E155

Agenda Packet Page 78 of 156



Kensington Incidents 
June 2024

# Incident Date Type Street Type City Apparatus
1 0024066120 02-Jun-24 18:54:28 321 Los Altos DR Kensington E155
2 0024066362 03-Jun-24 08:59:23 611X Highland BLVD Kensington E152
3 0024066907 04-Jun-24 10:32:36 321 Lake DR Kensington E152
4 0024066966 04-Jun-24 12:12:53 321 Los Altos DR Kensington E155
5 0024066976 04-Jun-24 12:28:13 611X Grizzly Peak BLVD Kensington E152
6 0024066978 04-Jun-24 12:29:23 321 Beverly CT Kensington E152
7 0024067353 05-Jun-24 04:55:34 321 Coventry RD Kensington E155
8 0024068123 06-Jun-24 12:32:26 611 Highgate RD Kensington E155
9 0024068767 07-Jun-24 18:20:19 733 Franciscan WAY Kensington E155

10 0024068798 07-Jun-24 19:28:14 733 Franciscan WAY Kensington E155
11 0024069022 08-Jun-24 09:39:33 554 Franciscan WAY Kensington E152
12 0024069053 08-Jun-24 11:04:32 651 Purdue AVE Kensington E152
13 0024069330 08-Jun-24 22:57:08 322 Arlington AVE Kensington E155
14 0024069731 09-Jun-24 19:03:35 321 Coventry RD Kensington E155
15 0024069845 10-Jun-24 04:18:12 321 Rincon RD Kensington E155
16 0024070323 11-Jun-24 00:08:40 321 Willamette AVE Kensington E155
17 0024070712 11-Jun-24 18:49:49 321 Westminster AVE Kensington E155
18 0024070933 12-Jun-24 08:52:25 5000 Coventry RD Kensington E151
19 0024071417 13-Jun-24 10:28:38 444 Columbia AVE Kensington E155
20 0024072649 16-Jun-24 04:05:20 321 Highgate RD Kensington E155
21 0024072875 16-Jun-24 15:00:10 522 Arlington AVE Kensington E155
22 0024073217 17-Jun-24 10:39:26 412 Windsor AVE Kensington E155
23 0024073245 17-Jun-24 11:31:08 321 Vassar AVE Kensington E155
24 0024073859 18-Jun-24 20:24:22 321 Arlington AVE Kensington E155
25 0024074156 19-Jun-24 13:58:30 321 Highgate CT Kensington E155
26 0024074207 19-Jun-24 16:24:36 745 Canon DR Kensington E155
27 0024074618 20-Jun-24 14:58:55 321 Willamette AVE Kensington E155
28 0024074668 20-Jun-24 16:32:14 651 Ocean View AVE Kensington E155
29 0024075326 22-Jun-24 05:39:57 321 York AVE Kensington E155

Agenda Packet Page 79 of 156



Kensington Incidents 
June 2024

30 0024075583 22-Jun-24 16:25:29 321 Arlington AVE Kensington E155
31 0024075866 23-Jun-24 07:10:47 653 Windsor AVE Kensington E155
32 0024076221 24-Jun-24 02:19:54 400 Kenyon AVE Kensington E155
33 0024076598 24-Jun-24 19:42:13 554 York AVE Kensington E155
34 0024076911 25-Jun-24 13:13:32 321 Kerr AVE Kensington E155
35 0024077134 25-Jun-24 22:34:05 321 Highland BLVD Kensington E155
36 0024077325 26-Jun-24 12:05:21 321 Highland BLVD Kensington E151
37 0024078604 28-Jun-24 23:37:38 746 Sunset TER Kensington E155
38 0024078738 29-Jun-24 09:07:47 520 Sunset DR Kensington E155
39 0024079483 30-Jun-24 19:00:23 322 Purdue AVE Kensington E155
40 0024079630 01-Jul-24 03:43:56 321 Kerr AVE Kensington E155

Agenda Packet Page 80 of 156



TO: Auditor Controller of Contra Costa County:
 Forwarded herewith are the following invoices and claims for goods and services received which have been approved for payment:

TRANSMITTAL - APPROVAL

KENSINGTON FPD PY/CY:
TRANSMITTAL - APPROVAL BATCH #.:

Invoices DATE : 7/17/2024
LOCATION #: 13

FILENAME: KENSINGTON

VEND # VENDOR NAME
INVOICE 

DATE DESCRIPTION
FUND 
/ORG

SUB-
ACCT TASK OPT.

ACTIVITY 
/WORK 
AUTH.

ENCUMB (P.O.) 
/ Invoice # P/C

PAYMENT 
AMOUNT

50390 CWS 6/30/2024 PSB Renovation Construction 7847 2310 PayApp#20 221,376.81
50180 Mack5 6/30/2024 PSB Renovation Soft Costs 7847 2310 5877 23,650.00
50151 El Cerrito 7/1/2024 Fire Protection Services 07/01/2024 7840 2328 356,482.64
50147 KFPD Revolving Fund 7/15/2024 Reimburse Revolving fund 7840 2490 64,031.16

TOTAL 665,540.61

Kensington FPD Approval

Board President General Manager

1
Agenda Packet Page 81 of 156

Agenda Item 04c



Transactions:
Payee Date Expenses Description

Vista Print 06/03/2024 104.38$            Public Education
Mail Stream 06/03/2024 1,562.16$         Public Education
Vision Service Plan 06/03/2024 258.48$            Vision Insurance
CalPERS 06/03/2024 3,660.99$         Retiree Health
Microsoft 06/05/2024 12.50$              Microsoft 365 Subscription
Google 06/05/2024 342.10$            Email Service
Heartland Payroll 06/07/2024 100.99$            Payroll Processing Fee
Fed/State 06/07/2024 2,980.04$         Payroll Tax Withholding
T Barry 06/07/2024 4,657.73$         Payroll
Copy Central 06/10/2024 6.13$                Printing/Copying
Copy Central 06/10/2024 233.12$            Printing/Copying
Pacific Mobile 06/12/2024 3,752.92$         Temp Facilities Modular
Tmobile 06/13/2024 78.00$              Phone
Terminix 06/17/2024 168.00$            Pest Control
EBMUD 06/17/2024 251.61$            Utility
Hulu 06/20/2024 76.99$              Monthly TV Subscription for Temp Facility
Copy Central 06/20/2024 403.02$            Printing/Copying
Heartland Payroll 06/21/2024 100.99$            Payroll Processing Fee
Fed/State 06/21/2024 1,921.86$         Payroll Tax Withholding
T Barry 06/21/2024 4,501.48$         Payroll
Comcast 06/24/2024 233.87$            Internet
Copy Central 06/25/2024 7.46$                Printing/Copying
PG&E 06/25/2024 11.23$              Gas
Adobe Inc 06/03/2024 19.99$              PDF Software
Zoom 06/06/2024 140.00$            Zoom Payment
Comcast 06/20/2024 205.20$            Internet
Ooma 06/24/2024 82.19$              Office Telephone
Applied Material Enginering (Ck#995359) 06/04/2024 6,558.50$         PSB Renovation
Natalya St. Clair (Ck#995360) 06/11/2024 1,900.00$         Replanting Grant
Delta Dental (Ck#995361) 06/10/2024 2,472.93$         Dental Insurance
Meyers Nave (Ck# 995363) 06/20/2024 4,226.04$         Capital Outlay
Robert Half (Ck#995364) 06/18/2024 3,991.43$         Temporary Services
Krisch Company (Ck#995365) 06/21/2024 3,699.00$         Accounting
KPPCSD (Ck#995366) 06/21/2024 4,877.10$         Capital Outlay
Altivu (Ck# 995367) 06/25/2024 8,790.53$         Emergency Prep Coordinator
Streamline (Ck#995368) 05/15/2024 298.00$            Website Development and Maintenance
Unitarian Church of Berkeley (Ck# 995369) 06/25/2024 1,344.20$         Capital Outlay (Temp Facilities Lot Rental)

Net Withdrawals 
for Replenishment

64,031.16$       

-$                  
Replenishment Adjusted for 
Monthly Bills

64,031.16$       

Board President Date

General Manager Date

Kensington Fire Protection District
Checking Account Replenishment

July 17, 2024

Agenda Packet Page 82 of 156



Kensington Fire Protection District
Cash and Investment Balance Sheet

As of June 30, 2024

Current Cash and Investments

Cash Balance Comments
Petty Cash 200.00 
KFPD Revolving Acct - Gen Fund 197,626.45 Balance as of 06/30/2024
General Fund 2,356,195.23              Balance as of 06/30/2024
Special Tax Fund 199,054.72 Balance as of 06/30/2024
Capital Fund 627,705.59 Balance as of 06/30/2024

Total Cash Balance 3,380,781.99              

Investments
LAIF Balance 4,085,127.82              Balance as of 06/30/2024

Total Investments 4,085,127.82              

Total Current Cash and Investments 7,465,909.81              

Agenda Packet Page 83 of 156

Agenda Item 04d



Jun 30, 24 Jun 30, 23 $ Change

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
Petty Cash 200.00 200.00 0.00
KFPD Revolving Acct - Gen Fund 197,626.45 206,028.84 -8,402.39
General Fund 2,356,195.23 5,853,432.44 -3,497,237.21
Special Tax Fund 199,054.72 200,415.72 -1,361.00
Capital Fund 627,705.59 1,167,924.20 -540,218.61

Total Checking/Savings 3,380,781.99 7,428,001.20 -4,047,219.21

Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable 4,805.80 4,805.80 0.00
Advance on Taxes -125,264.54 0.00 -125,264.54
Advance on Supplemental Taxes 171,431.98 67,983.45 103,448.53

Total Accounts Receivable 50,973.24 72,789.25 -21,816.01

Other Current Assets
Prepaid Exp. 6,110.33 6,906.07 -795.74
Prepaid CERBT - Retiree Trust 508,252.48 508,252.48 0.00
Investments

LAIF Balance 4,085,127.82 24,795.13 4,060,332.69
Fed Home Loan Bk - 9/27/23 0.00 3,500,000.00 -3,500,000.00

Total Investments 4,085,127.82 3,524,795.13 560,332.69

Total Other Current Assets 4,599,490.63 4,039,953.68 559,536.95

Total Current Assets 8,031,245.86 11,540,744.13 -3,509,498.27

Fixed Assets
Land 5,800.00 5,800.00 0.00
Equipment 1,818,946.43 1,793,890.43 25,056.00
Accumulated Depreciation-Equip -911,477.25 -911,477.25 0.00
Building and Improvements 2,391,581.26 2,391,581.26 0.00
Accumulated Depreciation - Bldg -1,342,172.17 -1,342,172.17 0.00
Current Capital Outlay

PSB Renovation Soft Costs 1,467,763.68 906,121.28 561,642.40
PSB Renovation Hard Cost 6,051,094.68 1,263,720.63 4,787,374.05
Temp Facility - Soft Costs 261,739.37 261,682.37 57.00
Temp Facilities - Hard Costs 608,501.11 600,096.82 8,404.29
Temp Facilities - Lot Rental 29,842.00 13,800.00 16,042.00
Temp Facilities - Modular 77,240.40 32,205.36 45,035.04
Temp Facilities - Admin Sublet 56,086.65 26,824.05 29,262.60
Temp Facilities - Relocation 46,218.20 35,127.07 11,091.13
Public Safety Building PreConst 2,200.00 0.00 2,200.00

Total Current Capital Outlay 8,600,686.09 3,139,577.58 5,461,108.51

Total Fixed Assets 10,563,364.36 5,077,199.85 5,486,164.51

Other Assets
Deferred Outflow of Res. - OPEB 133,200.00 133,200.00 0.00

Total Other Assets 133,200.00 133,200.00 0.00

TOTAL ASSETS 18,727,810.22 16,751,143.98 1,976,666.24

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

Due to Revolving Acct - Gen Fnd 67,538.94 835,217.28 -767,678.34
Due to Other - Issued by CCC 1,840,501.05 100,500.76 1,740,000.29
Accounts Payable 697.24 1,297.24 -600.00

Total Accounts Payable 1,908,737.23 937,015.28 971,721.95

Kensington Fire Protection District

07/12/24 Balance Sheet Prev Year Comparison
Accrual Basis As of June 30, 2024

Page 1

Agenda Packet Page 84 of 156



Jun 30, 24 Jun 30, 23 $ Change

Other Current Liabilities
PSB Renovation Loan 1,539,460.63 1,539,460.63 0.00
Wages & PR Taxes Payable 0.00 7,776.42 -7,776.42

Total Other Current Liabilities 1,539,460.63 1,547,237.05 -7,776.42

Total Current Liabilities 3,448,197.86 2,484,252.33 963,945.53

Long Term Liabilities
El Cerrito Reconcilation Liab. 187,870.08 187,870.08 0.00
Postretirement Health Ben Liab 0.14 0.14 0.00

Total Long Term Liabilities 187,870.22 187,870.22 0.00

Total Liabilities 3,636,068.08 2,672,122.55 963,945.53

Equity
Fund Equity - General 3,889,496.00 3,889,496.00 0.00
Fund Equity - Capital Projects 3,213,698.00 3,213,698.00 0.00
Fund Equity - Special Revenue 109,075.00 109,075.00 0.00
Fund Equity - Gen Fixed Asset 2,222,992.01 2,222,992.01 0.00
Fund Equity 4,643,760.42 3,606,611.59 1,037,148.83
Net Income 1,012,720.71 1,037,148.83 -24,428.12

Total Equity 15,091,742.14 14,079,021.43 1,012,720.71

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 18,727,810.22 16,751,143.98 1,976,666.24

Kensington Fire Protection District

07/12/24 Balance Sheet Prev Year Comparison
Accrual Basis As of June 30, 2024

Page 2

Agenda Packet Page 85 of 156



Jul '23 - Jun 24 Jul '22 - Jun 23 $ Change

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Property Taxes 5,517,762.82 5,264,469.59 253,293.23
Special Taxes 200,826.80 200,436.70 390.10
Other Tax Income 326.99 24,422.92 -24,095.93
Lease Agreement 0.00 3,050.25 -3,050.25
Interest Income 60,332.75 40,336.29 19,996.46
CERBT Reimbursement 30,735.48 18,088.02 12,647.46
Miscellaneous Income 186.10 989.41 -803.31

Total Income 5,810,170.94 5,551,793.18 258,377.76

Gross Profit 5,810,170.94 5,551,793.18 258,377.76

Expense
Staff

Wages 205,523.19 153,783.13 51,740.06
Vacation Wages 0.00 5,271.36 -5,271.36
Medical/dental ins compensation 4,933.33 6,000.00 -1,066.67
Payroll Taxes 16,822.85 14,272.54 2,550.31
Workers Compensation/Life Ins 3,034.73 1,760.33 1,274.40
Payroll Processing 2,695.34 2,435.74 259.60

Total Staff 233,009.44 183,523.10 49,486.34

RETIREE MEDICAL BENEFITS
PERS Medical 42,384.64 15,762.95 26,621.69
Delta Dental 9,891.72 11,385.48 -1,493.76
Vision Care 2,778.66 3,424.86 -646.20

Total RETIREE MEDICAL BENEFITS 55,055.02 30,573.29 24,481.73

OUTSIDE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
Fiscal Analysis Consultant 450.00 0.00 450.00
District Administration 3,991.43 0.00 3,991.43
Operational Consultant 15,375.00 5,437.50 9,937.50
Crime Insurance Policy 153.16 918.96 -765.80
Nixle Fee 3,182.70 0.00 3,182.70
Long Term Financial Planner 1,950.00 0.00 1,950.00
Emergency Prep Coordinator 97,690.03 105,199.92 -7,509.89
Accounting 46,910.78 36,895.00 10,015.78
Actuarial Valuation 0.00 5,600.00 -5,600.00
Audit 0.00 17,500.00 -17,500.00
Bank Fee 0.00 25.00 -25.00
Contra Costa County Expenses 7,292.11 56,254.22 -48,962.11
El Cerrito Contract Fee 4,146,967.98 3,843,483.11 303,484.87
El Cerrito Reconciliation(s) 77,553.96 77,553.80 0.16
IT Services and Equipment 10,347.74 4,097.19 6,250.55
Fire Engineer Plan Review 240.00 2,445.32 -2,205.32
LAFCO Fees 0.00 2,078.15 -2,078.15
Legal Fees 13,046.94 15,822.54 -2,775.60
Recruitment 8,706.00 30,090.00 -21,384.00
Website Development/Maintenance 3,719.88 3,239.88 480.00
Wildland Vegetation Mgmt 4,000.00 6,500.00 -2,500.00

Total OUTSIDE PROFESSIONAL SERVIC... 4,441,577.71 4,213,140.59 228,437.12

COMMUNITY SERVICE ACTIVITIES
Replanting Grant 3,900.00 0.00 3,900.00
Public Education 11,534.14 14,093.67 -2,559.53
CERT Emerg Kits/Sheds/Prepared 1,637.51 0.00 1,637.51
Open Houses 0.00 718.88 -718.88
Community Shredder 3,970.50 7,252.56 -3,282.06
Community Sandbags 2,373.35 3,940.05 -1,566.70

Total COMMUNITY SERVICE ACTIVITIES 23,415.50 26,005.16 -2,589.66

DISTRICT ACTIVITIES
Professional Development 6,908.10 595.00 6,313.10

Kensington Fire Protection District

07/11/24 Profit & Loss Prev Year Comparison
Accrual Basis July 2023 through June 2024

Page 1

Agenda Packet Page 86 of 156



Jul '23 - Jun 24 Jul '22 - Jun 23 $ Change

Office
Mtg Room Rentals 0.00 80.00 -80.00
Internet 4,584.87 3,769.08 815.79
Office Equipment 0.00 1,189.03 -1,189.03
Office Expense 6,602.59 5,246.60 1,355.99
Office Supplies 2,727.78 763.45 1,964.33
Telephone 1,010.72 8,841.11 -7,830.39

Total Office 14,925.96 19,889.27 -4,963.31

Election 0.00 5,579.18 -5,579.18
Firefighter's Apparel & PPE 0.00 1,264.02 -1,264.02
Firefighters' Expenses 0.00 28,581.68 -28,581.68
Staff Appreciation 66.15 0.00 66.15
Memberships 4,525.02 5,100.00 -574.98

Building Maintenance
Gardening service 0.00 140.00 -140.00
Janitorial Service 0.00 806.24 -806.24
Miscellaneous Maint. 2,804.06 10,392.70 -7,588.64

Total Building Maintenance 2,804.06 11,338.94 -8,534.88

Building Utilities/Service
Refuse Collection 3,171.48 2,169.76 1,001.72
Gas and Electric 5,692.39 14,993.51 -9,301.12
Water/Sewer 5,396.52 2,902.98 2,493.54
Building Utilities/Service - Other 902.88 0.00 902.88

Total Building Utilities/Service 15,163.27 20,066.25 -4,902.98

Total DISTRICT ACTIVITIES 44,392.56 92,414.34 -48,021.78

Total Expense 4,797,450.23 4,545,656.48 251,793.75

Net Ordinary Income 1,012,720.71 1,006,136.70 6,584.01

Other Income/Expense
Other Income

Discount on US TBills 0.00 61,625.00 -61,625.00
Discount on Fixed Security 0.00 143,060.07 -143,060.07

Total Other Income 0.00 204,685.07 -204,685.07

Other Expense
Depreciation Expense 0.00 173,672.94 -173,672.94

Total Other Expense 0.00 173,672.94 -173,672.94

Net Other Income 0.00 31,012.13 -31,012.13

Net Income 1,012,720.71 1,037,148.83 -24,428.12

Kensington Fire Protection District

07/11/24 Profit & Loss Prev Year Comparison
Accrual Basis July 2023 through June 2024

Page 2

Agenda Packet Page 87 of 156



 07/11/24
 Accrual Basis

 Kensington Fire Protection District

 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
 July 2023 through June 2024

Jul '23 - Jun 24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

Property Taxes 5,517,762.82 5,475,049.00 42,713.82 100.78%

Special Taxes 200,826.80 201,000.00 -173.20 99.91%

Other Tax Income 326.99 25,000.00 -24,673.01 1.31%

Lease Agreement 0.00 3,050.00 -3,050.00 0.0%

Interest Income 60,332.75 216,110.00 -155,777.25 27.92%

CERBT Reimbursement 30,735.48 68,000.00 -37,264.52 45.2%

Salary Reimbursement Agreement 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Miscellaneous Income 186.10 2,000.00 -1,813.90 9.31%

Total Income 5,810,170.94 5,990,209.00 -180,038.06 96.99%

Gross Profit 5,810,170.94 5,990,209.00 -180,038.06 96.99%

Expense

Staff

Wages 205,523.19 163,191.00 42,332.19 125.94%

Vacation Wages 0.00 6,816.00 -6,816.00 0.0%

Medical/dental ins compensation 4,933.33 9,333.00 -4,399.67 52.86%

Payroll Taxes 16,822.85 13,820.00 3,002.85 121.73%

Workers Compensation/Life Ins 3,034.73 3,500.00 -465.27 86.71%

Payroll Processing 2,695.34 2,545.00 150.34 105.91%

Total Staff 233,009.44 199,205.00 33,804.44 116.97%

RETIREE MEDICAL BENEFITS

PERS Medical 42,384.64 52,000.00 -9,615.36 81.51%

Delta Dental 9,891.72 12,000.00 -2,108.28 82.43%

Vision Care 2,778.66 4,000.00 -1,221.34 69.47%

CalPERS Settlement 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total RETIREE MEDICAL BENEFITS 55,055.02 68,000.00 -12,944.98 80.96%

OUTSIDE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Fiscal Analysis Consultant 450.00 0.00 450.00 100.0%

District Administration 3,991.43

Operational Consultant 15,375.00 5,000.00 10,375.00 307.5%

Crime Insurance Policy 153.16

Nixle Fee 3,182.70 4,120.00 -937.30 77.25%

Long Term Financial Planner 1,950.00 2,500.00 -550.00 78.0%

Emergency Prep Coordinator 97,690.03 108,356.00 -10,665.97 90.16%

Accounting 46,910.78 37,080.00 9,830.78 126.51%

Actuarial Valuation 0.00 2,800.00 -2,800.00 0.0%

Audit 0.00 20,000.00 -20,000.00 0.0%

Bank Fee 0.00 50.00 -50.00 0.0%

Contra Costa County Expenses 7,292.11 39,520.00 -32,227.89 18.45%

El Cerrito Contract Fee 4,146,967.98 4,146,968.00 -0.02 100.0%

El Cerrito Reconciliation(s) 77,553.96 77,554.00 -0.04 100.0%

 Page 1 of 3

reviewing staffing with accounting team to ensure PY accrual has been reversed

Agenda Packet Page 88 of 156



 07/11/24
 Accrual Basis

 Kensington Fire Protection District

 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
 July 2023 through June 2024

Total Income 5,810,170.94 5,990,209.00 -180,038.06 96.99%

Gross Profit 5,810,170.94 5,990,209.00 -180,038.06 96.99%

IT Services and Equipment 10,347.74 2,500.00 7,847.74 413.91%

Fire Abatement Contract 0.00 5,250.00 -5,250.00 0.0%

Fire Engineer Plan Review 240.00 3,000.00 -2,760.00 8.0%

Grant Writer/Coordinator 0.00 15,000.00 -15,000.00 0.0%

Risk Management Insurance 0.00 21,697.00 -21,697.00 0.0%

LAFCO Fees 0.00 2,100.00 -2,100.00 0.0%

Legal Fees 13,046.94 20,600.00 -7,553.06 63.34%

PSB Consultant 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Recruitment 8,706.00 14,925.00 -6,219.00 58.33%

Temporary Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Water System Improvements 0.00 10,000.00 -10,000.00 0.0%

Website Development/Maintenance 3,719.88 3,120.00 599.88 119.23%

Wildland Vegetation Mgmt 4,000.00 7,828.00 -3,828.00 51.1%

OUTSIDE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total OUTSIDE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 4,441,577.71 4,549,968.00 -108,390.29 97.62%

COMMUNITY SERVICE ACTIVITIES

Replanting Grant 3,900.00

KPPCSD Grant 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Public Education 11,534.14 20,000.00 -8,465.86 57.67%

EP Coord Expense Account 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%

Comm. Pharmaceutical Drop-Off 0.00 2,500.00 -2,500.00 0.0%

CERT Emerg Kits/Sheds/Prepared 1,637.51 4,120.00 -2,482.49 39.75%

Open Houses 0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00 0.0%

Community Shredder 3,970.50 5,500.00 -1,529.50 72.19%

Firesafe Planting Grants 0.00 25,000.00 -25,000.00 0.0%

Community Sandbags 2,373.35 2,000.00 373.35 118.67%

Volunteer Appreciation 0.00 500.00 -500.00 0.0%

Community Center Contribution 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

COMMUNITY SERVICE ACTIVITIES - Other 0.00 500.00 -500.00 0.0%

Total COMMUNITY SERVICE ACTIVITIES 23,415.50 63,120.00 -39,704.50 37.1%

DISTRICT ACTIVITIES

Professional Development 6,908.10 5,000.00 1,908.10 138.16%

Office

Internet 4,584.87 0.00 4,584.87 100.0%

Office Equipment 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%

Office Expense 6,602.59 58,000.00 -51,397.41 11.38%

Office Supplies 2,727.78 1,030.00 1,697.78 264.83%

Telephone 1,010.72 8,240.00 -7,229.28 12.27%

Office- Other 0.00 515.00 -515.00 0.0%

Office - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total Office 14,925.96 72,785.00 -57,859.04 20.51%

Election 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

 Page 2 of 3Agenda Packet Page 89 of 156



 07/11/24
 Accrual Basis

 Kensington Fire Protection District

 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
 July 2023 through June 2024

Total Income 5,810,170.94 5,990,209.00 -180,038.06 96.99%

Gross Profit 5,810,170.94 5,990,209.00 -180,038.06 96.99%

Firefighter's Apparel & PPE 0.00 1,500.00 -1,500.00 0.0%

Firefighters' Expenses 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%

Staff Appreciation 66.15 2,500.00 -2,433.85 2.65%

Memberships 4,525.02 9,500.00 -4,974.98 47.63%

Building Maintenance

Needs Assess/Feasibility Study 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Gardening service 0.00 500.00 -500.00 0.0%

Building alarm 0.00 1,500.00 -1,500.00 0.0%

Medical Waste Disposal 0.00 2,200.00 -2,200.00 0.0%

Janitorial Service 0.00 200.00 -200.00 0.0%

Miscellaneous Maint. 2,804.06 2,000.00 804.06 140.2%

Total Building Maintenance 2,804.06 6,400.00 -3,595.94 43.81%

Building Utilities/Service

Refuse Collection 3,171.48 0.00 3,171.48 100.0%

Gas and Electric 5,692.39 14,300.00 -8,607.61 39.81%

Water/Sewer 5,396.52 4,120.00 1,276.52 130.98%

Building Utilities/Service - Other 902.88 3,940.00 -3,037.12 22.92%

Total Building Utilities/Service 15,163.27 22,360.00 -7,196.73 67.81%

Total DISTRICT ACTIVITIES 44,392.56 125,045.00 -80,652.44 35.5%

Contingency 0.00 20,000.00 -20,000.00 0.0%

Total Expense 4,797,450.23 5,025,338.00 -227,887.77 95.47%

Net Ordinary Income 1,012,720.71 964,871.00 47,849.71 104.96%

Other Income/Expense

Other Expense

Depreciation Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total Other Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Net Other Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Net Income 1,012,720.71 964,871.00 47,849.71 104.96%

 Page 3 of 3Agenda Packet Page 90 of 156



Agenda Item 04e 

Page 1 of 1 
 
 

KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
 
DATE:  July 17, 2024 

TO:   Board of Directors 

RE:   Ratify Approval of the Change in Time of Regular Emergency 
    Preparedness Committee Meetings 

SUBMITTED BY: Mary A. Morris-Mayorga, Consultant 
 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends the Board ratify approval of the change in time of Regular Emergency 
Preparedness Committee Meetings from 3:00pm to 4:00pm and approve the updated Annual 
Meeting Schedule which reflects this. 
 
Background 

In May, the Board of Directors discussed changing the start time of the Emergency 
Preparedness Committee Meetings from 3:00pm to 4:00pm.  There was a motion made by 
Director Stein and the Board voted unanimously; however, there was no second on that motion.  
To ratify this motion, we are bringing it to this meeting on the Consent Items to approve the 
change as well as the updated Annual Meeting Schedule. 
 
Fiscal Impact 

There is no fiscal impact from this item. 
 
 
Attachment: KFPD Annual Meeting Schedule 
   
 
 

Agenda Packet Page 91 of 156



10/25/2023 

 KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

2024 Board and Committee Meeting Schedule 

Board of Directors 
Meets on the third Wednesday of each month at 7:00pm in the Kensington Community Center, 
59 Arlington Avenue 

Emergency Preparedness Committee 
Meets on the fourth Thursday of each month at 4:00pm in the Kensington Community Center, 
59 Arlington Avenue 

Finance Committee 
Typically meets four times per year in the Kensington Community Center, 59 Arlington Avenue, 
with dates scheduled once agenda items are determined.  

The meeting schedule for 2024 is listed below with additional meetings scheduled as 
determined by the Board and/or Committee: 

Board of Directors Emergency Preparedness Committee 

January 17 January 25 

February 21 February 22 

March 20 March 28 

April 17 April 25 

May 15 May 23 

June 19 June 27 

July 17 July 25 

August 21 August 22 

September 18 September 26 

October 16 October 24 

November 20 November 28 (Thanksgiving-reschedule) 

December 18 December 26 

Agenda Packet Page 92 of 156



KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

Page 1 of 2 

DATE: July 17, 2024 

TO: Kensington Fire Protection District Board 

RE:  Emergency Preparedness Coordinator Report 

SUBMITTED BY: Johnny Valenzuela, Emergency Preparedness Coordinator 

The following progress items will be reviewed in the KFPD Board of Directors meeting: 

1. Community Event/Engagement
 6/22/2024 KARO ECHO Amateur Radio Field Day
 7/9/2024 Kensington Library Fire Preparedness Panel
 7/13/2024 Maybeck Firewise Fire Extinguisher Event
 7/14/2024 Maybeck Firewise Community Chipping Day

2. District Communications/ Publications
 6/12/2024 Nextdoor KARO ECHO Amateur Radio Field Day
 6/23/2024 Nextdoor Interagency Wildland Training
 6/29/2024 Nextdoor Fireworks are Illegal
 7/2/2024 Nextdoor BBQ Safety
 7/6/2024 Nextdoor Kensington Library Wildfire Preparedness Program
 August 2024 Kensington Outlook Article

3. Initiatives/ Deliverables
 Add resident emails to the Red Flag Warning Email List
 Ongoing Firewise Support
 Move Banners for June Preparedness Campaign RE: Evacuation Readiness
 Develop a National Night Out Public Message
 Design Print Material for National Night Out Block Parties
 Coordinate with Contra Costa County to have dead trees and vegetation removed on

Arlington median per resident request 
 Coordinate with Contra Costa County to address the vegetation concerns on the

property adjacent to Kensington Hilltop School 
 Develop webpage for Community Chipping Day Information
 Upload California Department of Insurance 10 Tips to Find Insurance to KFPD

Website 
 Submit vegetation management concerns to the Fire Prevention Division and Contra

Costa Fire County Coordinator 
 Improve website accessibility for compliance- report to GM
 Provide input to El Cerrito Kensington Fire Department on CERT registration logistics
 Delivery of hardcopy material to residents per request
 Provide proposed firewise map of Arlmont per Director's request.

Agenda Packet Page 93 of 156

Agenda Item 06



April 19, 2023 
 
Emergency Preparedness Coordinator’s Report 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 Provide contacts of CERT leads to KFPD Board President per request 
 Upload BBQ Safety information to KFPD Website 
 Listed National Night Out Block Events on KFPD website with Host consent 

 
 

4. Meeting 
 6/19/2024 KFPD Monthly Board Meeting 
 6/20/204 El Cerrito  Kensington Fire Department Update  
 6/21/2024 Contra Costa County Fire Coordinator 
 6/27/2024 Emergency Preparedness Meeting 
 6/27/2024 Wildcat Firewise Update 
 6/29/2024 National Night Out Planning - KPD 
 7/2/2024 Maybeck Firewise Update 
 7/11/2024 Contra Costa County Fire Coordinator 

 
 
 
 

 

Agenda Packet Page 94 of 156



Page 1 of 10 

AT-WILL EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT FOR GENERAL MANAGER 

This At-Will Employment Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into and effective as of 
July 18, 2024, by and between the Kensington Fire Protection District (“District” or “Employer”) 
and Mary Morris-Mayorga (“Employee”), subject to the following terms and conditions. 

RECITALS 

This Agreement is made and entered with respect to the following facts: 

A. Employer is a public agency and fire protection district organized and existing
under and pursuant to the Fire Protection District Law (Health & Safety Code, §13800, et seq.) . 

B. Employer desires to hire Employee, who is presently serving as the Interim
General Manager, for the position part-time General Manager and to provide compensation on an 
hourly basis beginning July 18, 2024, subject to the following terms and conditions. 

C. Employee desires to accept such at-will employment subject to the following
terms and conditions. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals and of the mutual promises 
and conditions in this Agreement, Employer and Employee agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

1. Employment.

1.1 General Manager.  Employer hereby hires Employee as its part-time 
General Manager effective July 18, 2024. Employee hereby accepts such employment subject to 
the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  Employee is an at-will employee and in their 
capacity as General Manager shall serve at the pleasure of the District Board of Directors. 

2. Term Of Employment.  The term of this Agreement shall commence July 18,
2024 and shall continue for two (2) years from the date of commencement unless terminated by 
either party in accordance with the provisions set forth in Section 11. 

3. Employee’s Duties Scope.

a. Employee shall serve as Employer’s part-time General Manager,
and shall perform the functions and duties specified in applicable state laws and the District’s 
Policy Manual, Employee Handbook, and Operations Manual, as the same may be amended 
from time to time.   

b. Employee shall perform other legally permissible functions and
duties as the District Board of Directors may assign from time to time pursuant to formal action, 
including assignments given by an individual or committee pursuant to authority delegated by 
the Board of Directors by formal action.   

Agenda Item 08a

Agenda Packet Page 95 of 156



 

Page 2 of 10 

c. “Formal action” for this purpose shall mean a motion, resolution, 
or ordinance approved or adopted by the Board of Directors in accordance with its policies.   

d. As General Manager, except when the Board of Directors has 
designated an Acting General Manager by formal action, Employee shall have full power and 
authority to manage and conduct District business.   

e. Employee shall render their best professional services and skills 
for the benefit of the District.  Employee shall be responsible for performing the work under this 
Agreement in a manner which is consistent with the generally accepted standards for a 
professional public agency administrator.  Employee agrees to devote sufficient and adequate 
time, ability, attention, energy, knowledge, and skills to the performance of their duties under 
this Agreement and, except as provided herein, to remain in the exclusive employ of District 
during the Term of this Agreement.  

3.2 Conflicts.  Employee shall not engage in any activity that is or may 
become a legal conflict of interest or a legally prohibited contract, or that does or may create an 
incompatibility of office as defined under California law.  Employee shall complete all 
disclosure forms required by law. 

3.3 Schedule.   

a. While it is anticipated that Employee will normally work an 
approximately twenty-four (24) hour work week, it is expected, due to the nature of the job, that 
from time to time such hours per week will be exceeded.   

b. Additional time beyond the District’s normal business hours will 
be required, including, but not limited to, time in connection with attendance at evening 
meetings, outside of normal business hours.   

c. Employee represents that any current additional activities will not 
interfere with their duties as General Manager.  

d. Employee shall not engage in any activity which is or may become 
a conflict of interest, prohibited contract, or which may create an incompatibility of office as 
defined under California law. Employee shall complete all disclosure forms required by law. 

3.4 Exempt Position.  The position of General Manager is exempt under the 
Fair Labor Standards Act. 

3.5 Board Members.  No Board Member shall interfere with the execution of 
Employee’s duties, or order, directly or indirectly, Employee to appoint or remove any person to 
or from any office or employment of the District, except in accordance with applicable District 
policies.  Individual Board Members shall address any District employees and contract services 
under Employee’s management solely through Employee, and no individual Board Member shall 
give orders to any subordinate of the Employee, either publicly or privately, except as permitted 
by the Employee. 

Agenda Packet Page 96 of 156



 

Page 3 of 10 

3.6 Location.  Except as stated herein, it is anticipated that the majority of the 
services provided by Employee under this Agreement will be provided at District facilities. 

a. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it is understood by the parties that, 
at the time of execution of this Agreement, the District does not have suitable office space at its 
facilities to provide Employee with an office.  Until such time the District provides a dedicated 
facility for the performance of Employee’s routine duties, Employee may perform such work 
remotely.  Employee shall be available to meet with members of the Board of Directors, 
employees, contractors, members of the public, representatives of other agencies, and other 
individuals having an interest in District business at a District facility on a by-appointment basis. 

b. Employee shall attend and administer all regular and special 
meetings of the Board of Directors or its committees in person, except that the District agrees to 
allow occasional telephonic or virtual attendance at such meetings in order to minimize 
Employee’s travel for meetings without extensive agendas.   

c. Upon the availability of suitable office space and equipment, 
Employee shall perform the duties described by this Agreement as specified by formal action of 
the Board of Directors. 

3.7 Conduct.  Employee acknowledges that the position of General Manager 
is a position of high visibility before the public.  Employee shall conduct themselves before the 
public, both during and outside of regular working hours, in a manner that reflects favorably 
upon Employer.   

3.8 Support and Equipment.  The District shall, at District expense, supply 
Employee with sufficient personnel, contractors, and equipment to allow Employee to perform 
Employee’s duties and obligations under this Agreement.  All equipment supplied by District to 
Employee shall be returned to the District upon termination of this Agreement. 

a. The District shall, at District’s expense, supply Employee with a 
cellular phone for the purpose of conducting District business. 

b. The District shall, at District’s expense, supply Employee with a 
laptop computer for the purpose of conducting District business.   

c. Employee shall use such equipment exclusively for District 
business once received and shall not conduct District business using person cellular phones or 
computers. 

3.9 Reimbursement.  Subject to Employer’s policies, restrictions, and 
directions, including submission of receipts or other satisfactory documentation, Employer shall 
pay or reimburse Employee for actual and necessary expenses reasonably incurred by Employee 
in the performance of Employee’s duties pursuant to this Agreement, including such expenses 
incurred when traveling on District business.  Expenses incurred while commuting to District 
facilities to carry out employment duties shall not be reimbursed. Employee shall provide her 
own automobile for use in conducting normal District business.  Unless otherwise expressly 

Agenda Packet Page 97 of 156



 

Page 4 of 10 

agreed upon, the District’s Employee Handbook, as the same may be amended from time to time, 
shall govern reimbursement of Employee’s business mileage. 

4. Compensation.  As consideration for Employee’s performance of their duties 
under this Agreement, Employee shall receive the following compensation unless and until this 
Agreement is terminated as hereinafter provided:  

4.1 Hourly Pay.  Employee shall be paid at a rate of one-hundred-twenty-
three dollars and zero cents ($123.00) per hour for all authorized hours worked, less all 
applicable Federal, State and local withholding, payable on the District-established payroll cycle.  
For reference purposes only, the hourly pay rate would reflect a fulltime equivalent annual salary 
of two hundred fifity five thousand eight hundred forty dollars and zero cents ($248,726.00) per 
year ($123.00 times 2,080 hours). Employee shall provide the Finance Committee with a report 
of hours worked in fifteen-minute increments by way of a twice-monthly timesheet.  Report shall 
include such details as required by formal action of the Board of Directors.  Compensation shall 
be paid twice per month in accordance with District policies or as established by the Board of 
Directors. 

4.2 Deductions.  Taxes and other legally required deductions will be deducted 
from Employee’s compensation under this Agreement. 

4.3 Workload.   

a. It is expected that the position of General Manager will be a sixty-
percent full-time equivalent (60% FTE) and that the duties and responsibilities of the General 
Manager position will require twenty-four (24) hours per week.  District recognizes that the 
duties and responsibilities of the position may require Employee to work additional time 
periodically due to specific events and tasks.   

b. Advance permission is hereby given to work up to thirty-two (32) 
hours per week (80% FTE) when workload and circumstances warrant it.  Except in the event of 
an emergency, employee shall have no right to compensation for hours worked in excess of the 
foregoing limits in this section unless prior written approval was granted by the Board President 
or as otherwise established by formal action of the Board. 

4.4 Annual Cost-Of-Living Increase.  On the anniversary date of this 
Agreement, and every year thereafter, the hourly rate in Section 4.1, above, shall be increased in 
an amount equal to the twelve-month (12) percent change for San Francisco-Oakland-Hayward, 
California CPI-U for June of the then-current calendar year. 

4.5 Annual Performance Review.  On or before the anniversary date of this 
Agreement, and each year thereafter, the Board of Directors shall conduct a formal performance 
evaluation of Employee.  Board and Employee shall agree to a work plan for Employee for the 
following year and shall reevaluate the requirements and limitations set forth in Section 4.3, 
herein, to determine whether such requirements and limitations should be adjusted.  At the time 
of the annual review, if the Board, in its sole discretion, concludes that Employee has performed 
exemplary service as General Manager, the Board may award a merit bonus or increase to 
Employee’s hourly rate forth in Section 4.1, as may be increased from time to time, of not more 

Agenda Packet Page 98 of 156



 

Page 5 of 10 

than five percent (5%) of Employee’s hourly rate prior to any increase pursuant to Section 4.4 
for the current calendar year. 

4.6 Amendment.  Changes to FTE annual base salary or hourly rate, 
including cost-of-living adjustments and/or merit increases, shall be memorialized by an 
amendment to this Agreement.  

4.7 No Overtime.  Employee shall not be entitled to receive payment or 
credit, and Employer shall not pay or credit Employee, for overtime, compensated time off in 
lieu of overtime or other compensation except as expressly provided in this Agreement. 

5. Employee Benefits.  As consideration for Employee’s performance of their duties 
under this Agreement, Employee shall receive the following benefits unless and until this 
Agreement is terminated as hereinafter provided.  Employer shall pay Employee one-thousand 
dollars and no cents ($1,000.00) per month as taxable income upon satisfactory proof of health 
coverage as cash in lieu of benefits for health insurance, dental plan, and life insurance policy.  If 
at any time the District offers health, dental, and/or life insurance benefits to employees through 
an Employer-sponsored plan, Employee shall be eligible to participate in such plan and the cash 
in lieu of benefits provided under this paragraph will be discontinued, unless Employee is 
prohibited by law from participating in the Employer-sponsored plan. 

6. Vacation Leave.  Upon commencement of employment, Employee shall accrue 
paid vacation leave at the rate of zero point zero five eight (.058) hours per hour worked up to 
ninety (90) hours of vacation leave per year.  Once the maximum vacation accrual is reached, 
further accrual shall cease.  Accrued and unused vacation time shall carry over to the following 
year.  Accrued but unused vacation leave will be paid in full upon termination of Employee at 
the current hourly rate.  Employee may utilize vacation leave after the first ninety (90) days of 
employment.  Employee may use up to six (6) hours of vacation leave per day. 

7. Sick Leave.  Upon commencement of employment, employee shall accrue sick 
leave at the rate of one (1) hour per thirty (30) hours worked.  Employee may utilize sick leave 
after the first ninety (90) days of employment.  Any unused sick leave days at the time of 
Employee’s termination shall be forfeited and shall not be paid upon termination.  Accrued and 
unused sick leave shall carry over to the following year.  Separation from employment with the 
District shall cause cancellation of any accrued but unused sick leave, except as provided in this 
section, and no payment other than that provided for in this section shall be made for such 
accrued but unused sick leave.  Employee may use up to six (6) hours of sick leave per day. 

8. Holidays.  District will provide Employee with eleven and a half (11.5) paid 
holidays annually in accordance with District policies.  For the purpose of holiday pay, one 
“day” shall mean six (6) hours and one “half day” shall mean three (3) hours. 

9. Jury Duty Leave.  In the event Employee is summoned to jury duty, they shall be 
paid Employee’s regular wage for each working day of absence up to six (6) hours up to twenty-
four (24) hours per calendar year providing that jury fees, less mileage, are refunded by 
Employee to the Board. In order to receive payment under this Section, Employee must give 

Agenda Packet Page 99 of 156



 

Page 6 of 10 

Employer prior notice that Employee has been summoned for jury duty and must furnish 
satisfactory evidence that jury duty was performed on the days and hours claimed. 

10. No Other Benefits.  Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Employee 
shall not be entitled to enjoy or be paid for any other benefits available to other employees of 
District. 

11. At-Will Employment; Termination.  It is specifically understood and agreed 
that Employee serves at the pleasure of the District Board of Directors.  This Agreement and the 
relationship hereby created may be terminated at any time at the will of District, in its sole 
discretion, with or without cause, subject to the following: 

11.1 For Cause.  If Employee is terminated for cause, Employee’s employment 
and this Agreement will be terminated effective immediately and Employee shall receive pay 
and benefits only through the effective date of termination.  As used in this Agreement, “cause” 
includes without limitation, as determined in the sole discretion of the Employer, any of the 
following: (1) insubordination, (2) dishonesty, (3) embezzlement, (4) violation of Federal, State 
or local requirements pertaining to conflict of interest, (5) conviction of a criminal act, other than 
minor traffic violations or similar offenses, which is likely to have a material adverse impact on 
the District’s or Employee’s reputation, (6) involvement in any act of moral turpitude that would 
compromise Employee’s effective performance as General Manager, (7) taking a public position 
adverse to the interests of Employer without Employer’s prior written consent, (8) violation of 
any fiduciary duty owed to Employer, (9) unauthorized or unexcused absence from employment 
or unauthorized or unexcused failure to perform employment duties for more than forty-eight 
(48) hours, (10) violation of District policies or procedures, (11) failure to maintain satisfactory 
working relationships with other employees, agents, or the public, (12) improper use of District 
funds, and/or (13) other failure of good behavior either during or outside of employment such 
that Employee’s conduct causes discredit to the District.  No Severance Compensation shall 
result from a termination for cause. 

11.2 Incapacity.  Employer shall have the option to terminate this Agreement 
without further payment of compensation and benefits, or Severance Compensation, if Employee 
becomes deceased, disabled, or incapacitated to such an extent that Employee cannot perform the 
General Manager duties for a period of two (2) successive weeks beyond any accrued sick leave, 
or for twenty (20) working days over a thirty (30) working day period. 

11.3 By Employee.  Employee may terminate this Agreement and resign their 
employment at any time, for any reason, upon two (2) months’ prior written notice to Employer.  
This Agreement and Employee’s employment shall terminate upon the expiration of the two (2) 
month notice period.  Once Employee gives Employer such written notice, Employee shall not 
have the right to rescind it without an affirmative vote of the majority of Employer’s elected 
directors in office as of the date Employee requests, in writing, that said written notice be 
rescinded.  Upon receipt of Employee’s written notice of resignation and termination of this 
Agreement, Employer shall have the right to immediately remove Employee from their position 
as General Manager, or to permit Employee to remain in the position of General Manager for all 
or any part of the two (2) month notice period.  If Employer elects to immediately remove 
Employee from their position as General Manager, or to remove Employee from their position as 

Agenda Packet Page 100 of 156



 

Page 7 of 10 

General Manager before the expiration of the two (2) month notice period, then Employer shall 
pay Employee an amount equal to the prorated salary and benefits that Employee would have 
received if Employee had remained in the position of General Manager for the two (2) month 
period.  If Employer requests that Employee continue to perform the duties of General Manager 
during the two (2) month notice period and Employee fails or refuses to do so, then Employee 
shall receive no salary or benefits after the last date upon which Employee actually performs the 
duties required of them as General Manager pursuant to this Agreement.   

11.4 Severance.  Unless Employee is terminated for cause, Employer shall pay 
Employee an amount equal to three (3) months of gross pay as severance compensation 
(“Severance Compensation”) in addition to the pay and benefits Employee earns under this 
Agreement through the effective date of termination. All such gross pay shall be subject to usual 
state and federal withholding.  Said payment of Severance Compensation shall be conditioned 
upon Employee executing a waiver and release agreement forever releasing and waiving any and 
all claims against the District in a form acceptable to the District. With the exception of the 
foregoing, Employer shall not pay Employee any other amounts whatsoever upon termination of 
Employee’s employment.  Employee shall not be entitled to receive any Severance 
Compensation if Employee resigns their employment with Employer.  California Government 
Codec Sections 53243, 53243.1, 53243.2, 53243.3 and 53243.4 are incorporated by reference as 
if fully set forth herein.  

11.5 Elections.  Employee shall not be terminated without cause during the 
thirty (30) day period preceding or following any District election for membership on the Board 
of Directors, or during the ninety (90) day period following any change in membership of the 
Board of Directors. 

12. Waiver and Release Concerning Additional Compensation.  The Parties 
understand and agree that the consideration specified in Section 4 and Section 5, above, is the 
sole compensation to which Employee will be entitled for work performed pursuant to this 
Agreement.  By signing this Agreement, to the maximum extent allowed by law, Employee, on 
behalf of themselves and their heirs, estate, executors, managers, successors and assigns waives, 
releases and discharges the District and its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, 
volunteers, attorneys, affiliated entities, successors, assigns and insurers from any and all 
compensation or consideration in addition (“Additional Compensation”) to that specified in 
Section 4 and Section 5, above, concerning Employee’s performance as General Manager.  
Except as may otherwise be required by law, the Additional Compensation waived, released and 
discharged pursuant to this provision includes, but is not limited to, compensation in the form of 
benefits pursuant to the Public Employees Retirement System (“PERS”) concerning work 
performed for District, and any and all other compensation or benefits that may otherwise be due 
Employee under District policies. 

13. Waiver and Release of Rights Concerning Termination or Expiration of this 
Agreement. By signing this Agreement, to the maximum extent allowed by law, Employee, on 
behalf of themselves and their heirs, estate, executors, successors and assigns waives, releases 
and discharges the District and its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, volunteers, 
attorneys, affiliated entities, successors, assigns and insurers from any and all rights Employee 
may otherwise have concerning notice, hearing or other procedural rights (“Procedural Rights”) 

Agenda Packet Page 101 of 156



 

Page 8 of 10 

under the District’s policies, or other applicable law, regulation or rule, concerning termination 
or expiration of this Agreement, so long as such termination or expiration is in accordance with 
the terms of this Agreement. 

14. Waiver and Release of Unknown Claims. By signing this Agreement Employee 
understands and agrees that the waivers and releases specified in Section 12 and Section 13, 
above, waive, to the maximum extent allowable by law, any and all existing rights and claims 
against the District arising from the performance of this Agreement concerning Additional 
Compensation and procedural rights thereof, including those which Employee does not know or 
suspect to exist in Employee’s favor at the time of executing this Agreement which, if known by 
Employee would have materially affected this Agreement.  Employee specifically waives their 
rights under Section 1542 of the California Civil Code, which provides that: 

A GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO CLAIMS WHICH THE 
CREDITOR DOES NOT KNOW OR SUSPECT TO EXIST IN HIS OR HER 
FAVOR AT THE TIME OF EXECUTING THE RELEASE, WHICH IF 
KNOWN BY HIM OR HER MUST HAVE MATERIALLY AFFECTED HIS 
OR HER SETTLEMENT WITH THE DEBTOR. 

15. Indemnification for PERS Benefits and Liability.  In the event a court of 
competent jurisdiction or an authorized PERS representative determines Employee to be eligible 
for enrollment in PERS as an employee of the District, or determines Employee and/or District to 
be liable for costs, expenses, penalties or other PERS-related liability arising from or elated to 
Employee’s performance as General Manager pursuant to this Agreement, Employee shall 
indemnify, defend and hold District harmless for payment of any employee and/or employer 
contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of Employee, as well as for the payment of any 
penalties or interest or other liability concerning such contributions or other PERS-related 
liability that would otherwise be the responsibility of the District. 

16. Employer Property.  All correspondence, memoranda, records, files, plans, 
papers, notes, notebooks, reports, manuals, ideas, intellectual property, trademarks, copyrights, 
patents, computer software or hardware and other materials (regardless of their form) that 
Employee receives, creates or produces in connection with this Agreement or with Employee’s 
employment by Employer shall be and remain the exclusive property of Employer.  Employee 
shall immediately deliver all originals of any such materials or matters that are either in 
Employee’s possession or under Employee’s control to Employer upon termination of this 
Agreement or upon request of any officer of Employer.  In addition to the foregoing, 
immediately upon termination of Employee’s employment, Employee shall cease using and shall 
surrender to Employer all keys issued to Employee to Employer’s building, all passwords and 
other methods of gaining access to Employer’s premises, property, email accounts, data, bank 
accounts, or information, all credit cards, debit cards, mobile telephones and radios, laptops, 
portable storage or recording devices, and all other property of Employer.  The foregoing 
notwithstanding, Employee shall be permitted to retain copies of records prepared by Employee 
that would be available to any member of the public pursuant to a bona fide request under the 
Public Records Act, Government Code Section 6250 et seq. Employer shall be represented by 
the Board President, District Counsel, or other designee of the Board to effect and complete the 
surrender of Employer Property from Employee. 

Agenda Packet Page 102 of 156



 

Page 9 of 10 

16.1 Assignment.  This Agreement is personal in nature and the parties hereto 
shall not assign or transfer this Agreement or any rights or obligations hereunder without the 
prior written consent of the other party, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.   

16.2 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement supersedes any and all other 
agreements and amendments to agreements, either oral or in writing, between the parties hereto 
with respect to the relationship between District and Employee, and contains all of the covenants 
and agreements between them with respect to that relationship.  Each party to this Agreement 
acknowledges that no representations, inducements, promises or agreements, oral or otherwise, 
have been made by any party, or anyone acting on behalf of any party, which are not embodied 
herein, and that no agreement, statement, or promise not contained in this Agreement shall be 
valid or binding on either party.  The parties have participated jointly in the negotiation and 
drafting of this Agreement. In the event an ambiguity or question of intent or interpretation 
arises, this Agreement shall be construed as jointly drafted by the parties, and no presumption or 
burden of proof shall arise favoring or disfavoring any party by virtue of the authorship of any 
provision of the Agreement.   

16.3 Modification.  Any modification of this Agreement will be effective only 
if it is in writing and signed by District and Employee.  

16.4 Partial Invalidity.  If any provision of this Agreement is held by a court 
of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall 
nevertheless continue in full force and effect without being impaired or invalidated in any way.   

17. Indemnification.  Pursuant to the requirement of the California Government 
Code, including but not limited to Sections 825, 995, 995.2, 995.8 and 996.4, as amended from 
time to time, District shall defend, save harmless and indemnify Employee against any tort, 
professional liability claim, and demand or other claim or legal action, whether groundless or 
otherwise, arising out of an alleged act or omission occurring in the course and scope of 
Employee’s duties as General Manager. Said defense shall be provided by District until such 
time as all legal action on the matter is concluded.  Any District funds provided for the legal 
defense of Employee shall be fully reimbursed in accordance with California Government Code 
Section 53243.1 if they are convicted of a crime involving an abuse of office or position as 
defined in California Government Code Section 53243.4. 

18. Law Governing.  This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of California.  Jurisdiction for any dispute arising out of or relating to 
this Agreement shall be exclusively with the Superior Court of the State of California.  Venue for 
any such dispute shall be exclusively within Contra Costa County, California.   

19. Headings.  The headings used throughout this Agreement are used for 
convenience of reference only and shall not in any way limit or be deemed to construe or 
interpret the provisions of this Agreement.  

20. Cooperation.  Each party hereto agrees to execute and deliver any documents and 
to take any other actions that may be reasonably requested by the other party to accomplish the 
purposes of this Agreement. 

Agenda Packet Page 103 of 156



 

Page 10 of 10 

21. Waiver Of Breach.  No waiver of any breach of this Agreement shall be 
effective unless in writing and no waiver shall constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach. 

22. Notices.  Notices pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing given by deposit 
in the custody of the United States Postal Service, postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 

(1) Kensington Fire Protection District 
 217 Arlington Avenue  
 Kensington, CA 94707 
 Attention: Board President 

 
(2) Mary Morris-Mayorga 
 3389 Archetto Drive 
 El Dorado Hills, CA 95762 
 

 
Alternatively, notices required by this Agreement may be personally served in the same manner 
as applicable to civil judicial process. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first 
written above.  

EMPLOYEE KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
 
 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Mary Morris-Mayorga   By:   Daniel Levine, President 

5483791.6  

Agenda Packet Page 104 of 156



 

Page 1 of 10 

AT-WILL EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT FOR GENERAL MANAGER 
 

This At-Will Employment Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into and effective as of 
September 21, 2023July 18, 2024, by and between the Kensington Fire Protection District 
(“District” or “Employer”) and Mary Morris-Mayorga (“Employee”), subject to the following 
terms and conditions. 

RECITALS 

This Agreement is made and entered with respect to the following facts: 

A. Employer is a public agency and fire protection district organized and existing 
under and pursuant to the Fire Protection District Law (Health & Safety Code, §13800, et seq.) . 

B. Employer desires to hire Employee, who is presently serving as the Interim 
General Manager, for the position part-time General Manager and to provide compensation on an 
hourly basis beginning September 21, 2023July 18, 2024, subject to the following terms and 
conditions. 

C. Employee desires to accept such at-will employment subject to the following 
terms and conditions. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals and of the mutual promises 
and conditions in this Agreement, Employer and Employee agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

1. Employment.  

1.1 General Manager.  Employer hereby hires Employee as its part-time 
General Manager effective September 21, 2023July 18, 2024. Employee hereby accepts such 
employment subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  Employee is an at-will 
employee and in their capacity as General Manager shall serve at the pleasure of the District 
Board of Directors. 

2. Term Of Employment.  The term of this Agreement shall commence September 
21, 2023July 18, 2024 and shall continue for two (2) years from the date of commencement 
unless terminated by either party in accordance with the provisions set forth in Section 11. 

3. Employee’s Duties Scope.   

a. Employee shall serve as Employer’s part-time General Manager, 
and shall perform the functions and duties specified in applicable state laws and the District’s 
Policy Manual, Employee Handbook, and Operations Manual, as the same may be amended 
from time to time.   

b. Employee shall perform other legally permissible functions and 
duties as the District Board of Directors may assign from time to time pursuant to formal action, 

Agenda Packet Page 105 of 156



 

Page 2 of 10 

including assignments given by an individual or committee pursuant to authority delegated by 
the Board of Directors by formal action.   

c. “Formal action” for this purpose shall mean a motion, resolution, 
or ordinance approved or adopted by the Board of Directors in accordance with its policies.   

d. As General Manager, except when the Board of Directors has 
designated an Acting General Manager by formal action, Employee shall have full power and 
authority to manage and conduct District business.   

e. Employee shall render their best professional services and skills 
for the benefit of the District.  Employee shall be responsible for performing the work under this 
Agreement in a manner which is consistent with the generally accepted standards for a 
professional public agency administrator.  Employee agrees to devote sufficient and adequate 
time, ability, attention, energy, knowledge, and skills to the performance of their duties under 
this Agreement and, except as provided herein, to remain in the exclusive employ of District 
during the Term of this Agreement.  

3.2 Conflicts.  Employee shall not engage in any activity that is or may 
become a legal conflict of interest or a legally prohibited contract, or that does or may create an 
incompatibility of office as defined under California law.  Employee shall complete all 
disclosure forms required by law. 

3.3 Schedule.   

a. While it is anticipated that Employee will normally work an 
approximately twenty-four (24) hour work week, it is expected, due to the nature of the job, that 
from time to time such hours per week will be exceeded.   

b. Additional time beyond the District’s normal business hours will 
be required, including, but not limited to, time in connection with attendance at evening 
meetings, outside of normal business hours.   

c. Employee represents that any current additional activities will not 
interfere with their duties as General Manager.  

d. Employee shall not engage in any activity which is or may become 
a conflict of interest, prohibited contract, or which may create an incompatibility of office as 
defined under California law. Employee shall complete all disclosure forms required by law. 

3.4 Exempt Position.  The position of General Manager is exempt under the 
Fair Labor Standards Act. 

3.5 Board Members.  No Board Member shall interfere with the execution of 
Employee’s duties, or order, directly or indirectly, Employee to appoint or remove any person to 
or from any office or employment of the District, except in accordance with applicable District 
policies.  Individual Board Members shall address any District employees and contract services 
under Employee’s management solely through Employee, and no individual Board Member shall 

Agenda Packet Page 106 of 156



 

Page 3 of 10 

give orders to any subordinate of the Employee, either publicly or privately, except as permitted 
by the Employee. 

3.6 Location.  Except as stated herein, it is anticipated that the majority of the 
services provided by Employee under this Agreement will be provided at District facilities. 

a. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it is understood by the parties that, 
at the time of execution of this Agreement, the District does not have suitable office space at its 
facilities to provide Employee with an office.  Until such time the District provides a dedicated 
facility for the performance of Employee’s routine duties, Employee may perform such work 
remotely.  Employee shall be available to meet with members of the Board of Directors, 
employees, contractors, members of the public, representatives of other agencies, and other 
individuals having an interest in District business at a District facility on a by-appointment basis. 

b. Employee shall attend and administer all regular and special 
meetings of the Board of Directors or its committees in person, except that the District agrees to 
allow occasional telephonic or virtual attendance at such meetings in order to minimize 
Employee’s travel for meetings without extensive agendas.   

c. Upon the availability of suitable office space and equipment, 
Employee shall perform the duties described by this Agreement as specified by formal action of 
the Board of Directors. 

3.7 Conduct.  Employee acknowledges that the position of General Manager 
is a position of high visibility before the public.  Employee shall conduct themselves before the 
public, both during and outside of regular working hours, in a manner that reflects favorably 
upon Employer.   

3.8 Support and Equipment.  The District shall, at District expense, supply 
Employee with sufficient personnel, contractors, and equipment to allow Employee to perform 
Employee’s duties and obligations under this Agreement.  All equipment supplied by District to 
Employee shall be returned to the District upon termination of this Agreement. 

a. The District shall, at District’s expense, supply Employee with a 
cellular phone for the purpose of conducting District business. 

b. The District shall, at District’s expense, supply Employee with a 
laptop computer for the purpose of conducting District business.   

c. Employee shall use such equipment exclusively for District 
business once received and shall not conduct District business using person cellular phones or 
computers. 

3.9 Reimbursement.  Subject to Employer’s policies, restrictions, and 
directions, including submission of receipts or other satisfactory documentation, Employer shall 
pay or reimburse Employee for actual and necessary expenses reasonably incurred by Employee 
in the performance of Employee’s duties pursuant to this Agreement, including such expenses 
incurred when traveling on District business.  Expenses incurred while commuting to District 

Agenda Packet Page 107 of 156



 

Page 4 of 10 

facilities to carry out employment duties shall not be reimbursed. Employee shall provide her 
own automobile for use in conducting normal District business.  Unless otherwise expressly 
agreed upon, the District’s Employee Handbook, as the same may be amended from time to time, 
shall govern reimbursement of Employee’s business mileage. 

4. Compensation.  As consideration for Employee’s performance of their duties 
under this Agreement, Employee shall receive the following compensation unless and until this 
Agreement is terminated as hereinafter provided:  

4.1 Hourly Pay.  Employee shall be paid at a rate of one-hundred-nineteen 
twenty-three dollars and zerofifty-eight cents ($12319.0058) per hour for all authorized hours 
worked, less all applicable Federal, State and local withholding, payable on the District-
established payroll cycle.  For reference purposes only, the hourly pay rate would reflect a 
fulltime equivalent annual salary of two hundred fifityorty fiveeight thousand eightseven 
hundred fortytwenty six dollars and zeroforty cents ($248,726.0040) per year ($12319.0058 
times 2,080 hours). Employee shall provide the Finance Committee with a report of hours 
worked in fifteen-minute increments by way of a twice-monthly timesheet.  Report shall include 
such details as required by formal action of the Board of Directors.  Compensation shall be paid 
twice per month in accordance with District policies or as established by the Board of Directors. 

4.2 Deductions.  Taxes and other legally required deductions will be deducted 
from Employee’s compensation under this Agreement. 

4.3 Workload.   

a. It is expected that the position of General Manager will be a sixty-
percent full-time equivalent (60% FTE) and that the duties and responsibilities of the General 
Manager position will require twenty-four (24) hours per week.  District recognizes that the 
duties and responsibilities of the position may require Employee to work additional time 
periodically due to specific events and tasks.   

b. Advance permission is hereby given to work up to thirty-two (32) 
hours per week (80% FTE) when workload and circumstances warrant it.  Except in the event of 
an emergency, employee shall have no right to compensation for hours worked in excess of the 
foregoing limits in this section unless prior written approval was granted by the Board President 
or as otherwise established by formal action of the Board. 

4.4 Annual Cost-Of-Living Increase.  On the anniversary date of this 
Agreement, and every year thereafter, the hourly rate in Section 4.1, above, shall be increased in 
an amount equal to the twelve-month (12) percent change for San Francisco-Oakland-Hayward, 
California CPI-U for June of the then-current calendar year. 

4.5 Annual Performance Review.  On or before the anniversary date of this 
Agreement, and each year thereafter, the Board of Directors shall conduct a formal performance 
evaluation of Employee.  Board and Employee shall agree to a work plan for Employee for the 
following year and shall reevaluate the requirements and limitations set forth in Section 4.3, 
herein, to determine whether such requirements and limitations should be adjusted.  At the time 
of the annual review, if the Board, in its sole discretion, concludes that Employee has performed 

Agenda Packet Page 108 of 156



 

Page 5 of 10 

exemplary service as General Manager, the Board may award a merit bonus or increase to 
Employee’s hourly rate forth in Section 4.1, as may be increased from time to time, of not more 
than five percent (5%) of Employee’s hourly rate prior to any increase pursuant to Section 4.4 
for the current calendar year. 

4.6 Amendment.  Changes to FTE annual base salary or hourly rate, 
including cost-of-living adjustments and/or merit increases, shall be memorialized by an 
amendment to this Agreement.  

4.7 No Overtime.  Employee shall not be entitled to receive payment or 
credit, and Employer shall not pay or credit Employee, for overtime, compensated time off in 
lieu of overtime or other compensation except as expressly provided in this Agreement. 

5. Employee Benefits.  As consideration for Employee’s performance of their duties 
under this Agreement, Employee shall receive the following benefits unless and until this 
Agreement is terminated as hereinafter provided.  Employer shall pay Employee one-thousand 
dollars and no cents ($1,000.00) per month as taxable income upon satisfactory proof of health 
coverage as cash in lieu of benefits for health insurance, dental plan, and life insurance policy.  If 
at any time the District offers health, dental, and/or life insurance benefits to employees through 
an Employer-sponsored plan, Employee shall be eligible to participate in such plan and the cash 
in lieu of benefits provided under this paragraph will be discontinued, unless Employee is 
prohibited by law from participating in the Employer-sponsored plan. 

6. Vacation Leave.  Upon commencement of employment, Employee shall accrue 
paid vacation leave at the rate of zero point zero five eight (.058) hours per hour worked up to 
ninety (90) hours of vacation leave per year.  Once the maximum vacation accrual is reached, 
further accrual shall cease.  Accrued and unused vacation time shall carry over to the following 
year.  Accrued but unused vacation leave will be paid in full upon termination of Employee at 
the current hourly rate.  Employee may utilize vacation leave after the first ninety (90) days of 
employment.  Employee may use up to six (6) hours of vacation leave per day. 

7. Sick Leave.  Upon commencement of employment, employee shall accrue sick 
leave at the rate of one (1) hour per thirty (30) hours worked.  Employee may utilize sick leave 
after the first ninety (90) days of employment.  Any unused sick leave days at the time of 
Employee’s termination shall be forfeited and shall not be paid upon termination.  Accrued and 
unused sick leave shall carry over to the following year.  Separation from employment with the 
District shall cause cancellation of any accrued but unused sick leave, except as provided in this 
section, and no payment other than that provided for in this section shall be made for such 
accrued but unused sick leave.  Employee may use up to six (6) hours of sick leave per day. 

8. Holidays.  District will provide Employee with eleven and a half (11.5) paid 
holidays annually in accordance with District policies.  For the purpose of holiday pay, one 
“day” shall mean six (6) hours and one “half day” shall mean three (3) hours. 

9. Jury Duty Leave.  In the event Employee is summoned to jury duty, they shall be 
paid Employee’s regular wage for each working day of absence up to six (6) hours up to twenty-
four (24) hours per calendar year providing that jury fees, less mileage, are refunded by 

Agenda Packet Page 109 of 156



 

Page 6 of 10 

Employee to the Board. In order to receive payment under this Section, Employee must give 
Employer prior notice that Employee has been summoned for jury duty and must furnish 
satisfactory evidence that jury duty was performed on the days and hours claimed. 

10. No Other Benefits.  Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Employee 
shall not be entitled to enjoy or be paid for any other benefits available to other employees of 
District. 

11. At-Will Employment; Termination.  It is specifically understood and agreed 
that Employee serves at the pleasure of the District Board of Directors.  This Agreement and the 
relationship hereby created may be terminated at any time at the will of District, in its sole 
discretion, with or without cause, subject to the following: 

11.1 For Cause.  If Employee is terminated for cause, Employee’s employment 
and this Agreement will be terminated effective immediately and Employee shall receive pay 
and benefits only through the effective date of termination.  As used in this Agreement, “cause” 
includes without limitation, as determined in the sole discretion of the Employer, any of the 
following: (1) insubordination, (2) dishonesty, (3) embezzlement, (4) violation of Federal, State 
or local requirements pertaining to conflict of interest, (5) conviction of a criminal act, other than 
minor traffic violations or similar offenses, which is likely to have a material adverse impact on 
the District’s or Employee’s reputation, (6) involvement in any act of moral turpitude that would 
compromise Employee’s effective performance as General Manager, (7) taking a public position 
adverse to the interests of Employer without Employer’s prior written consent, (8) violation of 
any fiduciary duty owed to Employer, (9) unauthorized or unexcused absence from employment 
or unauthorized or unexcused failure to perform employment duties for more than forty-eight 
(48) hours, (10) violation of District policies or procedures, (11) failure to maintain satisfactory 
working relationships with other employees, agents, or the public, (12) improper use of District 
funds, and/or (13) other failure of good behavior either during or outside of employment such 
that Employee’s conduct causes discredit to the District.  No Severance Compensation shall 
result from a termination for cause. 

11.2 Incapacity.  Employer shall have the option to terminate this Agreement 
without further payment of compensation and benefits, or Severance Compensation, if Employee 
becomes deceased, disabled, or incapacitated to such an extent that Employee cannot perform the 
General Manager duties for a period of two (2) successive weeks beyond any accrued sick leave, 
or for twenty (20) working days over a thirty (30) working day period. 

11.3 By Employee.  Employee may terminate this Agreement and resign their 
employment at any time, for any reason, upon two (2) months’ prior written notice to Employer.  
This Agreement and Employee’s employment shall terminate upon the expiration of the two (2) 
month notice period.  Once Employee gives Employer such written notice, Employee shall not 
have the right to rescind it without an affirmative vote of the majority of Employer’s elected 
directors in office as of the date Employee requests, in writing, that said written notice be 
rescinded.  Upon receipt of Employee’s written notice of resignation and termination of this 
Agreement, Employer shall have the right to immediately remove Employee from their position 
as General Manager, or to permit Employee to remain in the position of General Manager for all 
or any part of the two (2) month notice period.  If Employer elects to immediately remove 

Agenda Packet Page 110 of 156



 

Page 7 of 10 

Employee from their position as General Manager, or to remove Employee from their position as 
General Manager before the expiration of the two (2) month notice period, then Employer shall 
pay Employee an amount equal to the prorated salary and benefits that Employee would have 
received if Employee had remained in the position of General Manager for the two (2) month 
period.  If Employer requests that Employee continue to perform the duties of General Manager 
during the two (2) month notice period and Employee fails or refuses to do so, then Employee 
shall receive no salary or benefits after the last date upon which Employee actually performs the 
duties required of them as General Manager pursuant to this Agreement.   

11.4 Severance.  Unless Employee is terminated for cause, Employer shall pay 
Employee an amount equal to three (3) months of gross pay as severance compensation 
(“Severance Compensation”) in addition to the pay and benefits Employee earns under this 
Agreement through the effective date of termination. All such gross pay shall be subject to usual 
state and federal withholding.  Said payment of Severance Compensation shall be conditioned 
upon Employee executing a waiver and release agreement forever releasing and waiving any and 
all claims against the District in a form acceptable to the District. With the exception of the 
foregoing, Employer shall not pay Employee any other amounts whatsoever upon termination of 
Employee’s employment.  Employee shall not be entitled to receive any Severance 
Compensation if Employee resigns their employment with Employer.  California Government 
Codec Sections 53243, 53243.1, 53243.2, 53243.3 and 53243.4 are incorporated by reference as 
if fully set forth herein.  

11.5 Elections.  Employee shall not be terminated without cause during the 
thirty (30) day period preceding or following any District election for membership on the Board 
of Directors, or during the ninety (90) day period following any change in membership of the 
Board of Directors. 

12. Waiver and Release Concerning Additional Compensation.  The Parties 
understand and agree that the consideration specified in Section 4 and Section 5, above, is the 
sole compensation to which Employee will be entitled for work performed pursuant to this 
Agreement.  By signing this Agreement, to the maximum extent allowed by law, Employee, on 
behalf of themselves and their heirs, estate, executors, managers, successors and assigns waives, 
releases and discharges the District and its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, 
volunteers, attorneys, affiliated entities, successors, assigns and insurers from any and all 
compensation or consideration in addition (“Additional Compensation”) to that specified in 
Section 4 and Section 5, above, concerning Employee’s performance as General Manager.  
Except as may otherwise be required by law, the Additional Compensation waived, released and 
discharged pursuant to this provision includes, but is not limited to, compensation in the form of 
benefits pursuant to the Public Employees Retirement System (“PERS”) concerning work 
performed for District, and any and all other compensation or benefits that may otherwise be due 
Employee under District policies. 

13. Waiver and Release of Rights Concerning Termination or Expiration of this 
Agreement. By signing this Agreement, to the maximum extent allowed by law, Employee, on 
behalf of themselves and their heirs, estate, executors, successors and assigns waives, releases 
and discharges the District and its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, volunteers, 
attorneys, affiliated entities, successors, assigns and insurers from any and all rights Employee 

Agenda Packet Page 111 of 156



 

Page 8 of 10 

may otherwise have concerning notice, hearing or other procedural rights (“Procedural Rights”) 
under the District’s policies, or other applicable law, regulation or rule, concerning termination 
or expiration of this Agreement, so long as such termination or expiration is in accordance with 
the terms of this Agreement. 

14. Waiver and Release of Unknown Claims. By signing this Agreement Employee 
understands and agrees that the waivers and releases specified in Section 1211 and Section 1312, 
above, waive, to the maximum extent allowable by law, any and all existing rights and claims 
against the District arising from the performance of this Agreement concerning Additional 
Compensation and procedural rights thereof, including those which Employee does not know or 
suspect to exist in Employee’s favor at the time of executing this Agreement which, if known by 
Employee would have materially affected this Agreement.  Employee specifically waives their 
rights under Section 1542 of the California Civil Code, which provides that: 

A GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO CLAIMS WHICH THE 
CREDITOR DOES NOT KNOW OR SUSPECT TO EXIST IN HIS OR HER 
FAVOR AT THE TIME OF EXECUTING THE RELEASE, WHICH IF 
KNOWN BY HIM OR HER MUST HAVE MATERIALLY AFFECTED HIS 
OR HER SETTLEMENT WITH THE DEBTOR. 

15. Indemnification for PERS Benefits and Liability.  In the event a court of 
competent jurisdiction or an authorized PERS representative determines Employee to be eligible 
for enrollment in PERS as an employee of the District, or determines Employee and/or District to 
be liable for costs, expenses, penalties or other PERS-related liability arising from or elated to 
Employee’s performance as General Manager pursuant to this Agreement, Employee shall 
indemnify, defend and hold District harmless for payment of any employee and/or employer 
contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of Employee, as well as for the payment of any 
penalties or interest or other liability concerning such contributions or other PERS-related 
liability that would otherwise be the responsibility of the District. 

16. Employer Property.  All correspondence, memoranda, records, files, plans, 
papers, notes, notebooks, reports, manuals, ideas, intellectual property, trademarks, copyrights, 
patents, computer software or hardware and other materials (regardless of their form) that 
Employee receives, creates or produces in connection with this Agreement or with Employee’s 
employment by Employer shall be and remain the exclusive property of Employer.  Employee 
shall immediately deliver all originals of any such materials or matters that are either in 
Employee’s possession or under Employee’s control to Employer upon termination of this 
Agreement or upon request of any officer of Employer.  In addition to the foregoing, 
immediately upon termination of Employee’s employment, Employee shall cease using and shall 
surrender to Employer all keys issued to Employee to Employer’s building, all passwords and 
other methods of gaining access to Employer’s premises, property, email accounts, data, bank 
accounts, or information, all credit cards, debit cards, mobile telephones and radios, laptops, 
portable storage or recording devices, and all other property of Employer.  The foregoing 
notwithstanding, Employee shall be permitted to retain copies of records prepared by Employee 
that would be available to any member of the public pursuant to a bona fide request under the 
Public Records Act, Government Code Section 6250 et seq. Employer shall be represented by 

Agenda Packet Page 112 of 156



 

Page 9 of 10 

the Board President, District Counsel, or other designee of the Board to effect and complete the 
surrender of Employer Property from Employee. 

16.1 Assignment.  This Agreement is personal in nature and the parties hereto 
shall not assign or transfer this Agreement or any rights or obligations hereunder without the 
prior written consent of the other party, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.   

16.2 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement supersedes any and all other 
agreements and amendments to agreements, either oral or in writing, between the parties hereto 
with respect to the relationship between District and Employee, and contains all of the covenants 
and agreements between them with respect to that relationship.  Each party to this Agreement 
acknowledges that no representations, inducements, promises or agreements, oral or otherwise, 
have been made by any party, or anyone acting on behalf of any party, which are not embodied 
herein, and that no agreement, statement, or promise not contained in this Agreement shall be 
valid or binding on either party.  The parties have participated jointly in the negotiation and 
drafting of this Agreement. In the event an ambiguity or question of intent or interpretation 
arises, this Agreement shall be construed as jointly drafted by the parties, and no presumption or 
burden of proof shall arise favoring or disfavoring any party by virtue of the authorship of any 
provision of the Agreement.   

16.3 Modification.  Any modification of this Agreement will be effective only 
if it is in writing and signed by District and Employee.  

16.4 Partial Invalidity.  If any provision of this Agreement is held by a court 
of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall 
nevertheless continue in full force and effect without being impaired or invalidated in any way.   

17. Indemnification.  Pursuant to the requirement of the California Government 
Code, including but not limited to Sections 825, 995, 995.2, 995.8 and 996.4, as amended from 
time to time, District shall defend, save harmless and indemnify Employee against any tort, 
professional liability claim, and demand or other claim or legal action, whether groundless or 
otherwise, arising out of an alleged act or omission occurring in the course and scope of 
Employee’s duties as General Manager. Said defense shall be provided by District until such 
time as all legal action on the matter is concluded.  Any District funds provided for the legal 
defense of Employee shall be fully reimbursed in accordance with California Government Code 
Section 53243.1 if they are convicted of a crime involving an abuse of office or position as 
defined in California Government Code Section 53243.4. 

18. Law Governing.  This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of California.  Jurisdiction for any dispute arising out of or relating to 
this Agreement shall be exclusively with the Superior Court of the State of California.  Venue for 
any such dispute shall be exclusively within Contra Costa County, California.   

19. Headings.  The headings used throughout this Agreement are used for 
convenience of reference only and shall not in any way limit or be deemed to construe or 
interpret the provisions of this Agreement.  

Agenda Packet Page 113 of 156



 

Page 10 of 10 

20. Cooperation.  Each party hereto agrees to execute and deliver any documents and 
to take any other actions that may be reasonably requested by the other party to accomplish the 
purposes of this Agreement. 

21. Waiver Of Breach.  No waiver of any breach of this Agreement shall be 
effective unless in writing and no waiver shall constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach. 

22. Notices.  Notices pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing given by deposit 
in the custody of the United States Postal Service, postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 

(1) Kensington Fire Protection District 
 217 Arlington Avenue  
 Kensington, CA 94707 
 Attention: Board President 

 
(2) Mary Morris-Mayorga 
 3389 Archetto Drive 
 El Dorado Hills, CA 95762 
 

 
Alternatively, notices required by this Agreement may be personally served in the same manner 
as applicable to civil judicial process. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first 
written above.  

EMPLOYEE KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
 
 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Mary Morris-Mayorga   By:   Julie SteinDaniel Levine, President 

5483791.6  

Agenda Packet Page 114 of 156



Agenda Item 08b

Agenda Packet Page 115 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 116 of 156



Overview of Major Capital Improvements 

The Board approved a preliminary budget for FY 24-25. This analysis 
assumes that revenues will total $6,215,187 and expenditures 
$5,063,52, leaving a net operating surplus of $1,151,666 - see Exhibit A 
following. However, as also shown on Exhibit A, the KFPD is required 
to set aside in FY 24-25 $219,348 to maintain a capital reserve account 
to replace fire engine equipment, and must pay $141,570 annually to 
pay down the $2.0 million loan to rebuild the PSB. When these two 
obligation are subtracted from the net operation surplus for FY 24:25, 
the KFPD will have $790,748 in available cash. 

Section 1150.10 of the KFPD's Policy Handbook states that "the general 

manager shall draft a proposed annual budget. Such an annual budget 

shall be balanced." As indicated from the aforementioned paragraph 
and shown in Exhibit A, the current budget leaves the KFPD with an 
available surplus of $790,748. It is recommended this surplus be 
designated for several fire protection measures as described below. 

Reducing risk of a Tilden Park fire - East Bay Regional Park District 
(EBRPD) owns the land comprising the school trail from Grizzly Peak to 
Kensington Hilltop School and east into the park. The property from 
Kensington Hilltop north to the Kensington/El Cerrito boarder is owned 
by Richmond but part of EBRPD. This park land is heavily wooded, has 
not had a fire for at least 100 years, and is considered vulnerable to a 
fire originating from strong late season easterly winds blowing towards 
Kensington. Unfortunately a reduction in the fuel capacity of the Tilden 
Park hillside in not currently among the projects that EBRPD has 
scheduled for fuel reduction. 

---
-1-

Agenda Item 08c

Agenda Packet Page 117 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 118 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 119 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 120 of 156



Agenda Item 08d 

Page 1 of 1 

KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
 
DATE: July 17, 2024 

TO: Board of Directors 

RE: Recording and Reporting on BOD Meetings 

REQUESTED BY: Director Stein and Director Artis 

   SUBMITTED BY: Mary Morris-Mayorga, Consultant 
 
 
Recommended Action 
Discuss, consider, provide staff direction, and potential action related to recording and reporting 
on Board of Directors’ Meetings. 
  
Background 
Director Stein had requested an agenda item for the Board to discuss and consider adopting 
action minutes for all Board meetings.  The June agenda contained numerous annual items, so 
this item was not able to be included on that agenda.  
 
Director Artis requested an agenda item for the Board to have a discussion around obtaining 
transcription software with the potential action of obtaining a piece of software that can do this. 
 
This discussion has come up at various times in the past so to assist in facilitating the 
discussion, staff included some agency minutes (action as well as summary) along with one 
example of transcription software cost (though there are likely many more to consider).  In 
addition, Zoom has a feature that we located that will automatically transcribe a meeting which 
has been recorded to the Cloud (which we do) so this feature has been turned on to test that. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
There is no determinable cost at this time; however, there would be a cost associated with 
purchase of transcription software if that determination were made.  For the current minutes 
which are action with summary, staff time can vary depending on the depth of the meeting so 
could result in a potential cost savings if the Board implemented strictly action minutes. 

Agenda Packet Page 121 of 156



Agenda Item 08d

Agenda Packet Page 122 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 123 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 124 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 125 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 126 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 127 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 128 of 156



Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 

10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200 • Mather, CA 95655 • Phone (916) 859-4300 • Fax (916) 859-3702 

ADAM A. HOUSE 
Fire Chief ADOPTED 

ACTION SUMMARY MINUTES - REGULAR MEETING 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT 

Thursday, March 28, 2024 
Held at the following locations: 

10545 Armstrong Avenue - Board Room 
Mather, California 

& 
Remotely Via Zoom 

CALL TO ORDER 

The meeting was called to order at 6:00 pm by President Goold. Board members present: 
Clark, Costa, Goold, Jones, Rice, Saylors, Sheetz, Webber and Wood. Board members 
absent: None. Staff present: Chief House and Board Clerk Rittburg. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Public comments were not received. 

CONSENT ITEMS 

Moved by Director Wood, seconded by Costa and carried unanimously by members present 
to adopt the consent calendar as follows: 

1. Action Summary Minutes 
Recommendation: Approve the Action Summary Minutes for the Regular Board Meeting 
of February 22, 2024. 
Action: Adopted Minutes. 

2. Adopt Resolution - Second Amendment - Mobile Integrated Health Services 
Agreement 
Recommendation: Adopt Resolution authorizing the Fire Chief or his designee to 
execute and administer the second amendment to the agreement. 
Action: Adopted Resolution. 

PRESENTATION ITEMS 

1. Capital Improvement Program Update 
(Administrative Analyst Erin Castleberry) 
Recommendation: Receive presentation. 
Action: Presentation received. 

Agenda Packet Page 129 of 156



ACTION ITEMS 

1. Industrial Disability Retirement - Engineer Holly Wagner 
(Deputy Chief Bailey) 
Recommendation: After discussion in Closed Session, consider adopting a 
Resolution finding Holly Wagner has suffered job related injuries and is eligible for an 
Industrial Disability Retirement. 
Action: Moved by Director Clark, seconded by Rice, and carried unanimously by 
members present to adopt the Resolution, finding Holly Wagner has suffered job 
related injuries incapacitating her for the performance of duties as an Engineer. 

REPORTS 

1. PRESIDENT'S REPORT - (President Goold) 

No Report 

2. FIRE CHIEF'S REPORT - (Chief House) 

Good evening, President Goold, Directors, Colleagues, and Members of the Public. 

1. New Hire 

a. Operations Data Analyst Candace Mccown introduced herself to the Board. 

2. Promotions 

a. Congratulations to Chris Gregory and Tyler Oshiro on their promotion to 
Captain effective April 1. 

3. Fresno Training Symposium 

• The Fresno Training Symposium, hosted by the CA Training Officers, is an 
annual conference that emphasizes training excellence, firefighter safety, and 
shaping tomorrow's fire service, today. 

a. I am happy to announce that 30 of this year's conference instructors were Metro 
Fire members, and an additional 12 members attended (including 3 from the 
Executive Team). 

OPERATIONS REPORT - (Deputy Chief Mitchell) 

1. Shift Commander Spotlight 

AC Fiorica introduced BC Gonsalves of Battalion 5 and Captain Katsuyoshi of Engine 24. 
Captain Katsuyoshi spoke about the 33rd annual Leukemia and Lymphoma Society 
Firefighter Stair Climb. This event is known as the world 's largest firefighter on-air stair climb 
race. 

3.28.2024 Board Meeting Action Summary Minutes Page 2 of 5 

Agenda Packet Page 130 of 156



ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT - (Deputy Chief Bailey) 

No Report 

SUPPORT SERVICES REPORT - (Deputy Chief Wagaman) 

No Report 

3. SMFD - FIREFIGHTERS LOCAL 522 REPORT (Captain Sean Scollard, Local 522 
Representative) 

Captain Scollard announced new addition to his family, a baby girl. He introduced Captain 
Brett Randle, newly elected Deputy Director. Captain Randle will be taking over the Health 
and Wellness initiative. Captain Scollard stated he attended the Workers' Compensation Ad 
Hoc Committee today. Director Rice stated he walked out of the meeting today and will no 
longer sit on the Ad Hoc Committee. 

4. COMMITTEE AND DELEGATE REPORTS 
All Committee Meetings will be held at the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District Board Room, 
10545 Armstrong Avenue, Mather, California unless otherwise specified. 

A. Executive Committee - (President Goold) 

President Goold reported the committee met tonight and appointed Director 
Clark to the Policy Committee. 

B. Communications Center JPA - (AC Greene) 

SRFECC BOD Report 3128124 

• Employee Recognitions 
o Celebrating one year is Abby Castillo, Jennifer Hottal, Natalie Beletskiy, Lauren 

Beck, Mary White and Lenny Sina. 
o Celebrating 2 years is Olivia LaFace, Julia McDaniel and Megan Wright. 
o Celebrating 12 years is Roman Kukharets. 
o Congratulates to Dispatcher Laura Macias' 20 years of service and retirement 

this month, praising and thanking her for her dedication to excellence in 
supporting our teams well as our field personnel and community members with 
kindness and respect. 

o Congratulated to Operations Manager Julee Todd on her 21-year service 
anniversary. 

• Announced completion of restroom remodel, commencement of bullpen remodel and 
fencing project. 

• SRFECC Board Up Program Selected Contractors, Contract years 2024-2027 (in no 
particular order) 

o Regional Builders, Inc. 
3.28.2024 Board Meeting Action Summary Minutes Page 3 of 5 

Agenda Packet Page 131 of 156



o Belfor Property Restoration 
o DH Construction 
o Duarte Construction Golden State Construction 
o Kustom US, Inc. (Formerly known as Five Star Restoration & Construction) 

• President Goold requested a short presentation of the work that takes places at the 
facility at a future meeting. 

• Next meeting April 9, 2024 

C. Finance and Audit Committee - (Director Jones) 
No Report 

D. Policy Committee - (Director Costa) 
No Report 

BOARD MEMBER QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 

Director Webber attended the Retiree Dinner recently, great event. Attended the Station 62 
Dedication today for Firefighter Dean Baker and Firefighter Kevin Printz. Nice dedication and 
the families were very moved. 

Director Costa thanked Captain Sean Scollard for his report and the Workers' Compensation 
data. 

Director Jones expressed a big thank you to CRRD and Jenna Kendrick for assisting a 
concerned citizen on a Friday at the end of the day. 

Director Wood echoed the sentiments of his fellow Board members and thanked staff for 
putting together the station dedication. 

President Goold reminded the Board that a Workers' Compensation 101 will be held on April 
25th immediately following the Board meeting. If you are interested in sitting on the Ad Hoc 
Committee, please reach out to Director Webber. 

CLOSED SESSION: 
The Board recessed to Closed Session at 7:04 PM on the following matters: 

1. PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION § 54956.9 (a) -
ONE (1) MATTER OF INDUSTRIAL DISABILITY RETIREMENT: 

1. Holly Wagner and the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
Claim #4A21120CFY J-0001 - Industrial Disability Retirement - Ty Bailey, Deputy 
Chief, Administration 

3.28.2024 Board Meeting Action Summary Minutes Page 4 of 5 

Agenda Packet Page 132 of 156



2. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT 
CODE SECTION 54957 .6 

1. Agency designated representatives Ty Bailey and Lisa Charbonneau. 
Employer/Employee Relations Resolution for Recognized Employee 
Organizations 

CLOSED SESSION REPORT OUT: 

The Board reconvened to open session at 7:44 p.m. General Counsel Lavra reported the 
Board met in closed session on two items, 1. Industrial Disability Retirement of Holly Wagner, 
no reportable action. 2. Conference with Labor Negotiators on Employer/Employee Relations 
Resolution, no reportable action. 

To view the video of the meeting, please visit the Metro Fire Website or our YouTube 
channel: 
https://metrofire.ca.gov/2024-03-28-board-meeting 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC9t-uKlc oOUGNrmogdQ QA 

3.28.2024 Board Meeting Action Summary Minutes Page 5 of 5 

Agenda Packet Page 133 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 134 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 135 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 136 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 137 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 138 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 139 of 156

Agenda Item 08e



���

���

��������	�
��������

�������������������������������������������������� 

!���"��#����������

$%%�����"�&'��(��������������������'�!���"��#�)�%��������

*�'����

+,		��-�.�
	��/�	�0-�	�1�	�-2��+��-	
�+�3-
���3�,	0��+��3�	4
-����/�3-	�0-�5++�+/67�
+,		��-�+�88�33����	�1�	�-2��+��-	
�+�3-
�+�,�-9�:,3-
��
;�<�-9�+�88�33���7�1�	8�	�
8�8;�	��1�-2��=�--3;,	>�+�88,��-9�?�4�3�	9�+�88�33���

$""������@���AA����'������������@�"���"��#���B�CDE���%���@�F�����A����G@���#����(��
H�A&�������������'�I���������������H��I� ������%�&@���A�A&����%%�����"�����(��
H��I��F�#��������������AA�����J

Agenda Packet Page 140 of 156



 

 

Public

Renée Fernandez-Lipp is a sustainability professional with over 25 years of experience promo ng energy 

efficiency, renewable energy, water conserva on and waste diversion programs and ini a ves. She has 

provided green building, climate change resiliency and decarboniza on consul ng services to both the 

public and private sectors. Renée par cularly enjoys working with special districts and is hoping to create 

more collabora on between districts to share best prac ces and op mize the impacts of their work. She 

recently provided subject ma er exper se for the Contra Costa County’s dra  Climate Ac on Plan (CAP), 

co-authored the Timber Cove County Water District’s (TCCWD) first ever Capital Investment Plan and is 

currently developing a climate change resiliency project for TCCWD.   

Renée has served on several non-profit boards and local government commissions, including:  

 Contra Costa County Resource Conserva on District (CCRCD) 

 Contra Costa County Sustainability Commission 

 Sage Compassion for Animals Board of Directors 

 Global Student Embassy Board of Directors 

 City of Pi sburg Community Advisory Commission (CAC) 

 Dow Community Advisory Panel (CAP) 

 Green Science Academy Board of Directors 

In her free me, she enjoys travelling and working with animals.  She works closely with several bay area 

animal rescues and helped launch a non-profit that provides grant funding for animals in medical need. 

Renée earned her M.B.A. at Golden Gate University and her B.S. in Mechanical Engineering at CSU, Long 

Beach.  She holds a cer ficate in Green Building and Renewable Energy from UC Davis and is a USGBC 

LEED Accredited Professional. She is currently comple ng a master’s degree in Sustainability Studies 

from Harvard University. 

Agenda Packet Page 141 of 156



2024 CSDA BOARD CANDIDATE INFORMATION SHEET 

The following information MUST accompany your nomination form and 
Resolution/minute order:  

Name:  Kathryn Slater-Carter  

District/Company:  San Mateo County Harbor District  
 Montara Water and Sanitary District 

 
Title:  San Mateo County Harbor District:  Commissioner, currently Vice President 

Montara Water and Sanitary District:  Director, currently Secretary 

Elected/Appointed/Staff:  Elected to each district 

Length of Service with District:  
San Mateo County Harbor District term began in 2023 
Montara Water and Sanitary District, 1996 to present 

1. Do you have current involvement with CSDA (such as committees, events, 
workshops, conferences, Governance Academy, etc.):  

Yes:  Ethics Training and Sexual Harassment Prevention training every other year at 
CSDA conferences and on-line. 

Annual Conference, Leadership Academy 2023, Members of San Mateo County 
CSDA pre-covid 

Each district I am on is a member of (San Mateo County Harbor District and Montara 
Water and Sanitary District) has a current CSDA Transparency Certificate of 
Excellence. 

Each of the 2 districts of which I am on the board sends management and staff to 
CSDA events and training.  As does the JPA I am appointed to (Sewer Authority 
MidCoastside) 

2. Have you ever been associated with any other state-wide associations (CSAC, 
ACWA, League, etc.):  

Harbor District is a member of Association of Marine Industries, Bay Planning 
Coalition, California Association of Harbor Master and Port Captains, California 
Marine Affairs and Navigation, California Special District Association, California 
Boating Congress, Government Finance Officers, Marine Recreation Association, 
and Special District Risk Management Authority.  

Agenda Packet Page 142 of 156



Montara Sanitary District is a member of California Association of Sanitation 
Agencies, and California Association of California Water Agencies. 

3. List local government involvement (such as LAFCo, Association of Governments, 
etc.):  

Midcoast Community Council (2001-2009),Bay Planning Coalition, Sewer Authority 
MidCoastside (2016 to present) 

4. List civic organization involvement: San Mateo County Chapter of CSDA, Half Moon 
Bay Chamber of Commerce, South San Francisco Chamber of Commerce, and 
Committee for Green Foothills.  

I worked with the SEIU union for 3 years to pass legislation protecting the rights of 
franchisees.  Two bills were passed by both houses in the legislature.  Sadly one, 
reinstating good faith and fair dealing in franchise codes for the State was vetoed by 
the Governor.  The next, giving franchisees the right to the equity built in the 
franchise created after was signed.   

  

Agenda Packet Page 143 of 156



 

 **Candidate Statement –  

Please vote for me for the CSDA Statewide Board.  I want to work educating the State 
Legislature about the necessity and importance of special districts to protecting 
Californians environmental and economic assets.    

Each of our Districts benefits from the CSDA trainings and workshops held throughout 
the year.  CSDA has helped districts bring the staff and board members more 
knowledge, at an affordable price with convenient times and locations.   I am happy to 
see CSDA has added permalinks to previously zoomed lectures.   

I want to work on the effort to put special districts in a position to benefit from federal 
recognition and funding.  The federal government is putting ever more requirements on 
special districts, but not providing funding.  We need to change this to protect our rate 
payers. 

Thank you, 

 

Kathryn Slater-Carter 

 

Agenda Packet Page 144 of 156



Agenda Item 09 

Page 1 of 1 

KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
 
DATE: July 17, 2024 

TO: Board of Directors 

RE: General Manager’s Report 

SUBMITTED BY: Mary Morris-Mayorga, Consultant 

 
 
For June and July, the District continues to advance initiatives which are highlighted here that 
are not otherwise covered under other agenda items. 
 
FY 2024-2025 Special Tax 
The request for the County to place and collect this special tax for the District has been 
completed:  requested initial parcel reports from the County Department of Information 
Technology; confirmed reports; completed forms and resolution; and submitted to County with 
County confirmation of package receipt anticipated by the time of this meeting.  
 
FY 2024-2025 Elections 
The Election Order including required forms, documents, and resolution has been submitted 
electronically and via postal mail to the County with confirmation of receipt received. 
 
FY 2023-2024 Annual Audit 
We have received and are reviewing the draft audit report which will be available soon to hold a 
Finance Committee meeting with the auditors. 
 
FY 2024-2025 Annual Audit 
We are in the process of establishing the schedule for the next annual audit to avoid any delay in 
getting the final complete within the normal timeframe. 
 
Fiscal Analysis Project with Ridgeline 
Continued work on this project answering clarification questions related to budget, forecasting, El 
Cerrito contract. 
 

Agenda Packet Page 145 of 156



Agenda Item 09 
Agenda Item 10 (from 6/19/2024 BOD Mtg) 

Page 1 of 1 

KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

DATE: June 19, 2024 

TO: Board of Directors 

RE: General Manager’s Report 

SUBMITTED BY: Tim Barry, Interim General Manager 

Highlights of the regular business activities, other special projects, and updates for the District 
which are not covered in other agenda items are noted below for April/May. 

Fiscal Analysis Project with Ridgeline 
Work continues on this project, with the district providing information to Ridgeline.  Ridgeline’s 
contract with KPPCSD for the project is posted both to their website and ours as is our Letter of 
Agreement for cost share of the study. Former GM Mary Morris-Mayorga continues on a contract 
basis with our district to assist with this project and to assist with items relative to the close out of 
the Public Safety Building Renovation project. The board held a joint meeting on June 5, 2024 
with the KPPCSD board and discussed “an administrative structure in a hypothetical combined 
district.” 

Note from Mary:  The District provided all strategic planning efforts including those in progress, 
noting such.  Ridgeline requested these in order to perform their due diligence (i.e to ensure they 
ask all related questions to confirm the fiscal analysis is comprehensive).    

Strategic Planning 
The board held strategic planning sessions on April 24th and May 6th, reviewing proposed goals 
and considering hiring a facilitator for the balance of the process. Following a discussion, the 
board decided to ask Directors Artis and Watt to take the proposed goals submitted by directors, 
along with existing district goals that they desired to carry forward, and reorganize a set of goals 
for the board to consider at the June 19th board meeting. 

Public Safety Building Project 
For the past several months, the contractor represented that they would reach the stage of 
Substantial Completion by May 31, 2024.  Recent work has resulted in delays past this date that 
are covered in more detail in the Public Safety Building Progress Report for this board meeting.   

Coordination with East Bay Regional Park District 
The Park District’s presentation to the board and subsequent discussions at the June 15th board 
meeting were productive and revealed an interest in continuing to work with KFPD to reduce fuels 
in Tilden Park and It would be our goal to develop a format for a partnership with EBRPD which 
gets us closer to achieving our goals of reducing fuels in Tilden Park and other fire prevention 
measures.  I am looking forward to continuing work with EBRPD toward a more formal 
partnership, after my time as Interim General Manager comes to a close on June 7th, if a contract 
is approved to that effect. 

Citizen Request 
I assisted a citizen to make a property identification per their insurance requirements for their 
property in Kensington which required a visit to the property, photos, and email verification I made 
on behalf of the district. 

Agenda Packet Page 146 of 156



Agenda Item 10 

 
 

KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
 
DATE: July 17, 2024 

TO: Board of Directors 

RE: Public Safety Building Project Update 

   SUBMITTED BY: Mary Morris-Mayorga, Consultant 
 

 

Recommended Action 
For information only, no action is requested at this time. 
  
Background 
The project team (contractor, architect/design, and construction manager) continues to work daily 
on construction and project administration (e.g. review/respond to RFIs, review/respond to 
submittals and change orders; site visits/meetings; and review construction schedule). Progress 
photos are included. 
 
Given the project is nearing completion, all hands have been on deck even more regularly to 
ensure a successful final completion and the recent time commitment has been extensive.  We 
are grateful to Tim Barry for assisting since the tasks are too numerous for one person to manage 
even with the project team.  Many items require the District to coordinate, facilitate, and/or 
participate in:  communication systems and partners (fiber lines, system tests/inspections/training, 
information technology, etc.); furnishings; landscaping, etc. 
 
The lockers in the plan were not conducive to firefighters’ storage of items so the design team 
worked with the fabricator to modify them at a reasonable cost rather than completely start over.  
Last week we planned furniture for rooms that will meet the needs of the range of users 
(firefighters, staff, Board, public) and has the wearability needed while still well within budget.  The 
final order including installation is in progress (or near completion bu the time of the meeting).  
Colors are classic that coordinate well with the interior of the building and the design team will 
create a color board for us. 
 
Project Completion 
Substantial completion per the schedule would have be May 31, 2024 with the contract allowing 30 
days max for completion of punch list items; however, the walk through was completed on 6/25 and 
the punch list items are in progress.  Mack5 is confirming the new completion date in accordance 
with the schedule, but it is anticipated that the District will be able to move in by early to mid-August 
with some items still in progress that will not hinder usage and occupancy. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
An update on the project budget versus expended is included below, including change orders.

 

Agenda Packet Page 147 of 156



 

 
 

First Floor 

Meeting Room 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Packet Page 148 of 156



 

 

Storage Room 

 

 
 

Administration/Office 

 

Agenda Packet Page 149 of 156



 

 

Second Floor 

Offices 

 

 
 

Kitchen/Dayroom 

 

Agenda Packet Page 150 of 156



Agenda Item 10
Agenda Item 11 from June 19, 2024 BOD Mtg

KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

DATE: June 19, 2024 

TO: Board of Directors 

RE: Public Safety Building Project Update 

SUBMITTED BY: Tim Barry, Interim General Manager 

Recommended Action 
For information only, no action is requested at this time. 

Background 
Ongoing 
The project team (contractor, architect/design, and construction manager) continues to work daily on 
construction and project administration (e.g. review/respond to RFIs, review/respond to submittals and 
change orders; site visits/meetings; and review construction schedule). Since the last board meeting 
I’ve visited the site twice to meet with the construction team and had two Zoom meetings concerning 
the ordering of furniture for the station.  I made arrangements for the compressor, in storage on a pallet 
at our storage facility in San Leandro, to be moved to the station for placement and confirmation of the 
fittings for connection to station electrical circuits.  Once the station is occupied, the district will have to 
move the many pallets of items in storage to a location where they can be gone through by district staff 
and managed.  Similarly, the storage room KFPD rents from KPPCSD at their portable building has 
items to be moved into the office area of the PSB and managed at the end of construction. 

Schedule and Current Work 
The contractor represented that substantial completion would be May 31, 2024 with the contract 
allowing 30 days max for completion of punch list items. That date came and went with items still not 
completed to qualify for a final walk through and establishment of the punch list.  When a punch list is 
established, move-in may occur including furniture delivery. We don’t have a new date of Substantial 
Completion from the contractor.  The elevator was late in arriving for installation, and final testing has 
not been completed.  Quite some time ago, the contractor asked for a replacement elevator, which was 
granted, but the power requirements were not exactly compatible with building power and our 
engineers have recently been working with the contractor on a solution which is forthcoming.  
Trenching along the north side of the building has taken place for access to a number of utility lines 
located in a congested space.  The ATT phone and internet lines have to go into an existing conduit 
and meet new conduit for entry to the building.  The phone, internet, and alarm systems are arranged, 
with ATT scheduled to bring new lines to the building on June 14th at which time the elevator alarm and 
building alarms will be tested.  A furniture order is being priced and planned, with input from fire staff, to 
be used in conjunction with items being used in the temporary fire station and those in storage I 
attended  several project team site meetings, toured the building and noted progress, reviewed current 
issues and change order requests, and viewed the look ahead of work to be expected in the next 
couple of weeks. The board is discussing a change in the exterior paint color that they felt was too dark. 
The discussions with the neighbor to the north resulted in no changes to the bushes on their property 
necessary, due to the ability to run all the utility lines and landing for the side door of the apparatus bay 
within the district property line without damaging the bushes, to which the neighbor was quite relieved. 
Work in recent weeks included final interior painting, carpeting and flooring installed, preparation for 
utilities connections, installation of cabinetry, kitchen appliances, and completion of bathroom areas. 
System installations and testing, continued kitchen installations, finish work and site clean up will take 
place in the next couple of weeks, working toward Substantial Completion and establishment of the 
punch list. Progress photos are included. 

Fiscal Impact 
An update on the project budget versus expended is included below, including change orders. 

Agenda Packet Page 151 of 156



Board of Directors Regular Meeting – June 19, 2024 
Public Safety Building Project Update 
Page 2 
 

 

 
 
 
Attachment: Kensington Public Safety Building Construction Progress Photos 

Agenda Packet Page 152 of 156



Agenda Packet Page 153 of 156



 

 

Agenda Packet Page 154 of 156



Agenda Item 11a 
Agenda Item 12a from 6/19/2024 BOD Mtg  

KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT  

DATE:  June 19, 2024  

TO:  Board of Directors  

   RE: May 23, 2024 EPC Meeting Summary  

SUBMITTED BY: Tim Barry, Interim General Manager  

The Emergency Preparedness Committee hybrid meeting convened on May 23, 2024 in Room 3 
of the Kensington Community Center at the new board-approved time of 4 p.m. The Committee 
discussed the draft Work Plan with board feedback from their April 17th board meeting, an, since 
the board had no updated comments, felt that it could go ahead and begin implementing the 
goals as is, to be modified by the board as determined.  

The Committee reviewed the slides from the May 15th board meeting presentation by East Bay 
Regional Park District and discussed with IGM Barry certain practical partnership ideas with 
EBRPD to better safeguard the Kensington community from possible wildfire from Tilden Park.  
Committee members like the concept of not only offering fiscal resources to EBRPD to 
advance fuel reduction in Tilden Park, but also ways we could offer community volunteers to 
work for EBRPD in the park.  

The committee received a presentation from Johnny Valenzuel, Emergency Preparedness 
Coordinator, of his goals for the next year’s contract.  His extensive list of goals, that were 
directly related to the proposed Work Plan, was supported by the committee, but with 
modifications that would abbreviate the number and depth of the goals and prioritize them so 
that they are achievable and he can be evaluated on the work he was able to accomplish 
rather than be too reliant upon other people’s efforts to achieve his goals.  Extensive 
discussion ensued geared toward making his goals more successful.  He will review and revise 
his goals accordingly to submit with his contract proposal to the board for the next year. 

The committee received the Emergency Preparedness Coordinator’s monthly Power Point report 
and discussed his efforts and results.  

 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 1 

Agenda Packet Page 155 of 156



Agenda Item 11b 
Agenda Item 12b (from 6/19/2024 BOD Mtg) 

Page 1 of 1 
 
 

KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
 
DATE:   June 19, 2024 

TO:   Board of Directors 

RE:   Finance Committee Report 

SUBMITTED BY: Mary A. Morris-Mayorga, Consultant 

 

Recommended Action 

This item is provided for information only with no action requested. 
 
Background 

The Finance Committee met on June 10, 2024 with the agenda item list included below along 
with a summary of that item: 
 
Annual Audit Update 
Nigro & Nigro, auditors, are finalizing the audit with some small items being reviewed by Krisch 
& Company, accounting firm, to determine the proper adjustment entry.  This is anticipated to be 
completed by the end of June. 
 
FY 2024-25 City of El Cerrito Contract Budget Estimate Review 
This is covered in Item 05f on the Board of Directors Meeting agenda of June 19, 2024. 
 
Updated Financial Forecast 
This is covered in Item 09b on the Board of Directors Meeting agenda of June 19, 2024. 
 
FY 2024-2025 Budget Development 
This is covered in Item 09b on the Board of Directors Meeting agenda of June 19, 2024. 
 
Public Safety Building Renovation Costs-to-Date/Budget 
This is covered in Item 09b on the Board of Directors Meeting agenda of June 19, 2024. 
 
District Reserve Policy 
Staff provided an overview of the policy and noted that there were no requests to review the 
policy as it had just been updated in December 2023; however, it was included on the agenda 
since it was listed in June 2023.  The committee did not recommend any updates to the policy at 
this time. 
 
Fiscal Impact 

The Fiscal Year 2024-25 Budget contains the financial impacts of these items as appropriate. 
 
 

Agenda Packet Page 156 of 156


	20240717_00 BOD Regular Mtg Agenda_final
	20240717_03a Strategic Planning Goals_pkt
	20240717_03a Strategic Planning Goals_Consolidated DRAFT Goals-Categorized and Condensed_comments
	20240717_03a Strategic Planning Goals_Revised Goals DRAFT_JW

	20240717_03b EPC Contract Renewal_pkt
	20240717_03b EPC Contract Renewal_proposal
	KFPD Proposal 2024-25
	KFPD Alignment
	Timeline
	KFPD Coordinator Timeline
	Services
	KFPD 2024-25 Renewal Sample Work

	20240717_03b EPC Contract Renewal_SR

	20240717_03c PSB Repainting
	20240717_04a BOD Mtg Minutes_20240515-20240605_pkt
	20240717_04a BOD Regular Mtg Minutes_20240515-draft
	20240717_04a BOD Special Mtg Minutes_20240605-draft

	20240717_04b Incident Activity_pkt
	20240717_04b Incident Activity_E55
	20240717_04b Incident Activity_Kensington
	20240717_04b Incident Activity_SR

	20240717_04c Transmittal TC52-Kensington_pkt
	20240717_04c Transmittal TC52-Kensington
	20240717_04c Transmittal_checking account replenishment

	20240717_04d Financial Reports_pkt
	20240715 Cash and Investment Balance Sheet for board
	Sheet2

	20240715 Comparative Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2024
	20240715 Profit Loss Prev Year Comparison

	20240717_4e Ratify EPC Meeting Time Change_pkt
	20240717_4e Ratify EPC Meeting Time Change_ann calendar
	20240717_4e Ratify EPC Meeting Time Change_SR

	20240717_06 EPCoordinator Report_pkt
	20240717_08a Employment Agreement - General Manager_pkt
	20240717_08a Employment Agreement - General Manager
	20240717_08a Employment Agreement - General Manager_redline

	20240717_08b Modify 1st Floor of PSB for PD
	revised locker area..pdf
	1st floor police use.pdf

	20240717_08c Proposed Capital Expenditures
	20240717_08d Recording and Reporting on BOD Meetings_pkt
	20240717_08d Recording and Reporting on BOD Meetings_pkt
	20240717_08d Recording and Reporting on BOD Meetings_att 1
	20240717_08d Recording and Reporting on BOD Meetings_att 2
	20240717_08d Recording and Reporting on BOD Meetings_att 3
	20240717_08d Recording and Reporting on BOD Meetings_att 4

	20240717_08d Recording and Reporting on BOD Meetings_SR

	20240717_08e CSDA BOD Election Ballot_pkt
	20240717_08e CSDA BOD Election Ballot
	20240717_08e CSDA BOD Election Ballot_Fernandez-Lipp Candidate Information
	20240717_08e CSDA BOD Election Ballot_Fernandez-Lipp Candidate Statement
	20240717_08e CSDA BOD Election Ballot_Slater-Carter_Candidate Information
	20240717_08e CSDA BOD Election Ballot_Slater-Carter_Candidate Statement

	20240717_09 General Manager's Report_pkt
	20240717_09 General Manager's Report (0619)_SR
	20240717_09 General Manager's Report_pkt

	20240717_10 Public Safety Building Update_pkt
	20240717_10 Public Safety Building Update (0619)
	20240619_11 Public Safety Building Update_att
	20240619_11 Public Safety Building Update_SR

	20240717_10 Public Safety Building Update_SR

	20240717_11a Emergency Preparedness Committee Summary of 5_23_24 Meeting_pkt
	20240717_11b Finance Committee Report_pkt



